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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This Report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Thiz Technology Group Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to Thiz Technology Group Limited. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: 1. the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading; 2. there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading,; and
3. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.

BRBEXZMERA R ([BF ) IR ([ RIER ) HEE
BIERWER - HAALBRMERRF ETNATBERAREARN AR —ELTNTE - AERENALETRRENZS AAWEER
B YEEBFEANNZRATEHRERE - AIERNBREARR LB ERTALRRES EXR B ERREE -

HRAIFER ETARMEIHEER  EAXREECESTHERNEIREEZBFEAZBAZTERDAR - ANFEREIRBEARREE 2RSS
EERBEZME

BER G RBEIERARIREEWE RS ERARAIHFRENABTHTRE - HEER LT B I T BRI - WX T T IR
2 EPEEIT A A T EE A SR RR 2 E N A T 51 B2 (F IR AR SE(F (B

A& (RIS B BR A A& EF ([EF AR EFE A E B A (F) BREEH & X 5T ER A REIFERES LRI BIZR LT
RI]) B9 E MTHE LB RH AN FIATFE B B IR 2 AIR B F - & EFALEL — & B - BB IKREARIE < 1. KRB BRI EBA T HIGEE
ERTE » BEREN S 2. WHERFEE R FE B EABTELRE | K3 KB EAKEN ) E R EF REFZER T EL AR
F A EE R EEFNRR AAE






Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographical Details of Directors
Corporate Governance Report
Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial Summary

BN REER AT

1

TEEH
MBHE

TRRE
B E R T
EEIL
%
=S
B R BET RS

AN
/B

i

R

>
e

e

i3S

HE

ralaER

AN R
MBARR
FARERER
AR ZEER
AT SRR P T
MR

20104 3R

11

17

24

26

27

28

30

31

33

34

94



rporate Information
EEER

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (Chief Executive Officer and Chairman)

Mr. Yuan Luke Tsu
Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Li Zhe

Mr. Chu Meng Chi
Ms. Chan Mei Sze

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre

37 Ma Tau Wai Road
To Kwa Wan
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal Share Registrar
Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

Butterfield House

68 Fort Street P. O. Box 705
George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

British West Indies

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
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Principal Banker
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch
82-84 Nathan Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Auditor
BDO Limited

25th Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Compliance Officer
Mr. Lin En Fu

Audit Committee
Ms. Li Zhe

Mr. Chu Meng Chi
Ms. Chan Mei Sze

Company Secretary and Qualified Accountant

Mr. Wong Lam, CPA, MBA

Authorised Representatives
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Mr. Wong Lam

Company Website

www.thizgroup.com

General Information
Listing

Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Listing Date 27 July 2001

Nominal Value HK$0.1 per share

Stock Code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 8119
Reuters 8119.HK
Bloomberg 8119 HK
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Turnover Analysis

2010 (HK$°000)
—E-BE(FHR)

EREB I

2009 (HK$’000)
—ERAE(FET)

. Trading ‘ Disfribufion of software products Training income
#5 DT ESD A

2010 2009

—E-=F ZTETNEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FAT
Financial Position BRI

— Total assets —BEME 17,942 17,700

- Net current assets/(liabilities) —nBEE/(AfE)FE 9,016 (23,787)
Financial Ratios Mgt =

- Current ratio — B 2.1 0.4

- Gross profit margin —EF= 11% 13%
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The Chinese economy has gradually recovered from the global financial crisis.

According to published official data, China’s GDP grew 8.7% and total retail sales
of consumer goods amounted to RMB12 trillion. The Chinese government has
implemented proactive fiscal policy and moderate monetary policy and quickly
issued measures to increase domestic demand and promote economic growth. The
RMB4 trillion financial stimulus plan has resulted in rapid investment growth while the
consumption stimulus policy has created substantial consumption demand.

With the growth in population, the individual consumption power and the demand
for high-end products continued to increase. The Group will increase its market
share through network optimization. The Group has always committed to providing
innovative services and focused on consumers’ interests to establish integrated
service value with high efficiency and standard, which can fulfill the consumers’ needs
in all aspects.

The Group believes that transformation and reform, as well as continuous innovation
and establishment of core competitiveness is the designated course. Thus, the Group
endeavors for optimization and transformation. Through improving the relationship
with the suppliers, the Group altered its supply chain model; and through network
optimization, the Group solidified and enhanced its product structure, improved its
product display and the pricing and promotional scheme by focusing on consumers’
demand. With the change in macroeconomic environment and rapid growth of the
industry, the Group will focus on customer value and aim at establishing itself as
a first-class enterprise on the basis of optimization and transformation. It has also
proposed strategy for future development in profitability and growth.

The Group will carry out various differentiated marketing strategies to market our
household gifts. We will also introduce more products that deliver higher gross profit
margin. Our strategy is to introduce the latest and most trendy models to obtain
leading position in the market and fulfill the needs of the consumers so as to achieve
higher gross profit margin.

The PRC have introduced a number of fiscal stimulus policies which effectively
expedited the replacement cycle of our products and became catalysts for rapid
growth in future consumption. According to market forecasts, the scale of online
shopping will reach RMBH1 trillion by 2014. Therefore, e-commerce poses significant
market potential and business opportunities and the Group will fulfill the customers’
needs for multi-channel shopping experiences.

Looking ahead, all fellow staff of our Group will closely cooperate and continue in
making innovation to create better returns for our shareholders and investors.

Wong Hoi Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2010
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Business Review

Last year was a challenging year for the Group. We took various management
initiatives in response to actual market conditions to cope with the global financial
crisis. Such initiatives included maximizing the income from television shopping,
catalogue mail order for banks and credit card gifts operations to replace those
businesses with lower margin and unsatisfactory results, reducing management cost,
organizational restructuring, streamlining of head count, and increasing our marketing
efforts, which helped maintain market confidence and business growth. Under the
impact of the global financial crisis, the performance of individual business segments
fell short of our expectation.

The Group has established distribution channels in the China market. The Group will
standardize its management policy for distributors already developed, and enhance
its ability in market development and cooperative competitiveness. Products not
meeting our requirement were eliminated to ensure a strong selling force in the
sales channel. The Group will strengthen its management to maintain sufficient
competitiveness for its products. The Group has conformed with the adjustment trend
in the external environment and adjusted itself with the overall environment. With its
reinforced strategic coordination, the Group will further enhance the construction of its
coordination system and endeavor to provide quality services to the clients.

In response to the global financial crisis, the Group adopted prudent and innovative
marketing strategy which was formulated in accordance with specific market
condition. This market-oriented strategy has promoted our market development
and sales. The Group refined its market structure and emphasized on our market
development, management and service of channels. We have streamlined the
structure, lowered the cost and improved efficiency. We focused on staff training
and customer service and enlarged our client base. With the improved market
condition and enlarged client base, the Group also has the opportunities for business
development.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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Prospect

With the recovery of the economy and the World Expo held in Shanghai, the world has
focused on China again. Competition in the trade will become keener. At the same
time, with consumers’ demand for better quality of products and the prices continuing
to rise, we will face more severe cost pressures. To solidify the Group’s position in
the market, we shall regard the top enterprises as our imaginary rivals, set a clear
development objective, boost our staff’s enthusiasm and strive to maintain the long-
term growth of the Group.

The Group will keep on consolidating its business foundation, ambitiously develop
in new business domains, enlarge its client base as well as thoroughly explore
the clients’ demand. The Group will also diversify its services, implement efficient
integration and redeployment of its service capability and use the capital platforms
to converge capital strength so as to enhance the Group’s business capabilities.
According to domestic market condition, business integration has been the
development strategy of the Group. In the coming year, the Group will further allocate
its resources to integrate the experiences from various regional markets and business
domains. We will identify the characteristics of the markets with our experiences and
advantages and rely on our efficient services to open up the market.

Facing intense competition in the market, the Group will increase its investment in
order to maintain rapid growth in sales and market share. We will launch more new
products and solidify our competitive advantages in the market. The Group will
further strengthen cost control and management, sales innovation and corporate
culture establishment in order to cope with the post-financial crisis period, inflation
expectation and other uncertainties. The Group will maintain competitiveness as well
as sustainable and rapid development.

Financial Review

The Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to HK$7,036,000 (2009:
HK$7,555,000). During the year, loss before taxation for the year was
HK$10,949,000, compared to HK$26,907,000 in the corresponding period of last
year.

Gross profit for the Group decreased from HK$991,000 in 2009 to HK$775,000 in
2010, while the gross profit margin decreased from 13% to 11%. The major reason
for the decrease in gross profitability was due to training income decreased during the
year.

Total operating costs were approximately HK$10,812,000 (2009: HK$16,389,000).
Compared to last year, the operating costs have decreased by 34%.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company and loss per share for the year were

HK$10,949,000 (2009: HK$23,550,000) and HKO.7 cents (2009: HK2 cents)
respectively.
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Financial Review (continued)
Financial resources, liquidity and capital structure

As at 31 March 2010, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$17,942,000
(2009: HK$17,700,000). Current assets amounted to HK$16,928,000 (2009:
HK$15,864,000), of which HK$14,030,000 (2009: HK$13,660,000) were cash and
bank deposits. Current liabilities of HK$7,912,000 (2009: HK$39,651,000) mainly
comprised of trade payables, other payables and accruals and amount due to director
and his spouse. There was no significant provision for tax payable during the year.
Current ratio of the Group was 2.1 (2009: 0.4).

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$9,016,000 (2009: net current liabilities of approximately HK$23,787,000).

On 7 June 2010, the Company and the Subscribers entered into the Subscription
Agreements, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to issue (pursuant to the
Specific Mandate), and the Subscribers agreed to subscribe for, an aggregate of
120,000,000 Subscription Shares at the Subscription Price of HK$0.10 per Share.

The Subscription Shares represent approximately 7.68% of the existing issued
ordinary share capital of the Company and approximately 7.13% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the Subscription Shares. The Company will use the estimated net proceeds of the
Subscription of approximately HK$11,700,000 to improve the working capital of the
Company, explore new business opportunities for the Company and expand the
existing business of the Company.

Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s main operations are in the PRC and Taiwan and its income and
expenses are transacted in RMB, USD and NT$ respectively. Accordingly, it has no

significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had no charge or pledge of assets. Details of
contingent liabilities are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Capital commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no material capital commitment.
Management and employees

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had 38 employees, including the Directors of the
Company. Salaries of employees are primarily based on prevailing market salary

levels and year end bonuses are granted at the end of each calendar year. Other
employees’ benefits include provident fund, medical cover and other insurance.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, aged 55, is an Executive Director and a founder of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 30 years’ experience in sales and marketing, in particular in
electronics and computer industries. Mr. Wong was the Chairman of Association of
Electronic Components Industry of Taipei from 1990 to 1993. He oversees the sales
and marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Wong graduated from the Department of
Industrial Management of Tamsui Oxford College in Taiwan with a diploma and a MBA
of the University of South Australia.

Mr. Yuan Luke Tsu

Mr. Yuan Luke Tsu, aged 36, graduated from the Business Administration department
of the California State University. He has been the President of F.T. Data Management
Inc. since 1997 to date. Mr. Yuan has substantial experience in the field of corporate
administration and management.

Mr. Lin En Fu

Mr. Lin En Fu, aged 54, is currently the chief operational officer of the Company. He
holds a master degree in Economics of the University of Kansas and had served for
First Commercial Bank of Taiwan for 21 years.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, aged 56, graduated from the Economic Faculty of Taiwan
University and had been involved in research studies in Harvard and Standford
Business Schools. He was the Vice President of Holtek Semiconductor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. in 1999. Besides, he was also the Chief Financial Officer of United
Microelectronics Corporation from 1983 to 2001, a semi-conductor manufacturer
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Taiwan, and had been working
there for about 18 years.

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen, aged 45, graduated from the department of Broadcasting and TV
of Shih Hsin University in Taiwan. She was the executive secretary of Franklin Advisors
Inc. and subsequently worked as the Vice President of Le Kao Co., Ltd. Ms. Hsieh has
extensive experience in the field of administration and management.

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru, aged 42, graduated with a Master Degree in Management from
Yuan Ze University in Taiwan. She was the assistant to president of Lung Hwa
Electronics Co., Ltd. from 2002 to 2003, and subsequently the Vice President of Chi
Fu Jong Hua Co., Ltd. Ms. Wu has extensive experience in the field of public relations
and consultancy.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Zhe

Ms. Li Zhe, aged 40, is a qualified PRC lawyer. Ms. Li graduated with a Bachelor
Degree in Economic Law from Zhongshan University, the PRC, a Master Degree
in Business Administration from Murdoch University, Australia and a Postgraduate
Diploma in Law from the Manchester Metropolitan University of the United Kingdom.
Ms. Li has served a number of law firms in the PRC and Hong Kong. She was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in July 2001.

Ms. Li is also a Non-executive Director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China Ltd.

Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Mr. Chu Meng Chi, aged 45. He obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Taiwan National Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Chu has over 17
years’ experience in the field of corporate administration and financial investment.

Ms. Chan Mei Sze

Ms. Chan Mei Sze, aged 45, is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She has over 22 years’ accounting and finance experience in various
industries in Hong Kong.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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INTRODUCTION

The Company endeavors to comply with all the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing a formal and
transparent procedure to protect and maximise the interests of shareholders during
the year ended 31 March 2010.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf of shareholders.
The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders by discharging its duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on
the principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of 9 Directors, with three Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (CEO and Chairman), Mr. Lin En Fu and Mr. Yuan Luke Tsu;
three Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen and
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Li
Zhe, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The primary functions of the Board include:

()

(vi)

deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and financial
performance and formulating appropriate policies to manage risk exposure
associated with realising the strategies and goals of the Group;

being held accountable for the internal control system of the Company and
responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

being ultimately responsible for preparing financial accounts and discussing the
performance, financial conditions and prospects of the Company in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible manner. These responsibilities are applicable to
quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Company, other price sensitive
announcements published according to the GEM Listing Rules and disclosure
of other financial information, reports submitted to regulatory bodies and
information disclosable under statutory requirements; and regularly reviewing
its own functions and the powers conferred upon Executive Directors to ensure
appropriate arrangements are in place.

Whilst Executive Directors, who oversee the overall business of the Company,
are responsible for the daily operations of the Company, the Board is
responsible for affairs involving the overall policies, finance and shareholders of
the Company, namely financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes
to accounting policies, annual operating budgets, material contracts, major
financing arrangements, principal investment and risk management strategy.

The management is well informed of its powers and duties with clear guidelines
and instructions, in particular regarding situations under which reporting to the
Board is necessary and matters that require the approval of the Board before
any decisions or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company.

The full Board meets at least four times a year, at approximately quarterly
intervals, to review the financial performance, results of each period, material
investments and other matters of the Group that require the resolution of the
Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to improve attendance
when Individual Director cannot attend the meeting in person. Opinions of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are actively sought by the Company if they
are unable to attend the meeting in person.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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'orTJ('J-r‘éte Governance Report (Continue

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
The primary functions of the Board include: (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Board held four regular board meetings.
The attendance record of each member of the Board is set out below:

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (CEO & Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Yuan Luke Tsu 4/4
Mr. Lin En Fu 4/4
Non-executive Directors
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen 4/4
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru 4/4
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Li Zhe 4/4
Mr. Chu Meng Chi 4/4
Ms. Chan Mei Sze 4/4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has adopted a set of Code on Corporate Governance (“Company Code”)
which sets out the corporate standards and practices used by the Group to direct
and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by referencing to the principles, code
provisions and recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“GEM Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules, which came into effect on 1st January 2005. The Board will continue to
monitor and revise the Company Code and assess the effectiveness of our corporate
governance practices in tandem with changes in the environment and requirements
under the GEM Code, to ensure the Company Code is in line with the expectations
and interests of shareholders and comply with the GEM Code.

The Company applied the principles and complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the GEM Code.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the GEM Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong is both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
who is responsible for managing the Board and the Group business. The Board
considers that, with the present board structure and scope of business of the Group,
there is no imminent need to separate the roles into two individuals as Mr. Wong is
perfectly capable of distinguishing the priority of these roles in which he has been
acting. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation of the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the GEM Code Provision A.4.1, all the non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present, the non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The chairman of the remuneration committee is Mr. Chu Meng Chi, an Independent
Non-executive Director, and other members include Ms. Li Zhe and Ms. Chan Mei
Sze being Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the remuneration committee of the Company convened one
meeting, all matters concerning the determination of remuneration of the Directors
and senior management were discussed. In addition, the remuneration policies
and incentive mechanism applicable to the Directors and senior management and
the overall remuneration system of the Group were further refined and reasonable
recommendations were made to the Board in the meetings. The remuneration
committee of the Company has considered and reviewed the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment letters of the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability of a candidate to act as a
director and approving and terminating the appointment of a director. The Company
has not set up any nomination committee in the period.

The Chairman is mainly responsible for identifying suitable candidates for members of
the Board when there is a vacancy or an additional director is considered necessary.
The Chairman will propose the appointment of such candidates to each member
of the Board for consideration and each member of the Board will review the
qualifications of the relevant candidates for determining the suitability to the Group on
the basis of his qualifications, experience and background. The decision of appointing
a director must be approved unanimously by the members of the Board.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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orporate Governance Report (Continue

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial

statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance

with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also

ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, about their

reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 24 to 25 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(@)

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in August 2001 and
currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Li
Zhe, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze. The Audit Committee possesses
a wealth of experience and expertise including accounting profession, and
regulatory experience both in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Mainland.

During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and has made relevant amendments to accommodate the
requirements of the GEM Code, where appropriate.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures and to maintain
good and independent communications with the management as well as auditor
of the Company.

In discharging its responsibility, the Audit Committee has performed the
following work:

(i)  reviewed the draft annual and quarterly financial statements and draft
results announcements during the year;

(i)  reviewed, in conjunction with the auditor, the development of accounting
standards and assessed their potential impacts on the Group’s financial

statements;

The Audit Committee met four times during the year to review the results of the
Group.
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tERERHE (B)

AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 March 2010, audit fees and non-audit service fees payable
to the auditor amounted to HK$330,000 (2009: HK$320,000) and HK$Nil (2009: Nil)
respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal control periodically to
ensure it is effective and adequate. The Company convened mestings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and risk management control.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders in compliance
with GEM Listing Rules.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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Directors’ Rep-

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year is set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at that date are set out on pages 26 to 93.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 33 and in note 28 to the
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st March, 2010, the Company had no distributable reserves.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 94 to page 95.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:—

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Mr. Yuan Luke Tsu
Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Li Zhe

Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Ms. Chan Mei Sze

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Wong
Hoi Wong, Mr. Yuan Luke Tsu, Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen and Ms. Wu Chiao Ru, shall retire
from the board by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed his/her
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM”) (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March
2010 and the Company considers the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, no
other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 5 August 2004, the share option scheme
adopted on 6 July 2001 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated with immediate effect
provided that options which have been granted under the Old Scheme and remain
outstanding shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed on the
same date.

Details of the New Scheme are set out in note 27 to the financial statements. No share
option was granted under the New Scheme.

A summary of the movements of the outstanding share options granted under the Old
Scheme during the year, which continue to be exercisable, is as follows:—

Number of share options
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BBE O RER RN 8 (T35t ) -
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Outstanding Outstanding 2009 2010
Name of as at as at Exercise price Exercise price Exercise
director 1.4.2009 31.3.2010 Date of grant per share per share period
R-ZBEAF R-ZE—EF —E2EhE —E2-ZF
mA—AH =A=t+—H =303 =303
EEnE 8 RATHE i RATHE R B8 TEE TEE T8
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 1)
(Bist2) (Hiiz2) (Biit2) (Biit2) (Bt 1)
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong 234,995 234,995 21 November 2.20 2.20 30 June 2002
FoUERE 2001 to 29 June 2012
—TT—F —TT-F
+—A=+—H NA=t+AZE
=
AAZt+H
Notes: Mt

1. The share options are fully vested on 30 June 2002.
2. The exercise price and the outstanding number of options have been adjusted for the
share consolidation of the Company’s shares on 3 October 2005 and the open offer of the

Company'’s shares on 25 September 2007.

3. The consideration of the grant of an option is HK$1 each payable by the grantee.

At 31 March 2010, the number of shares to be issued under share options granted
under the Old Scheme was 234,995, representing 0.02% of the issued share capital
of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2010, the interests or short positions of the directors and chief
executives in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 under the Laws of Hong Kong), which were
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to
Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows: —

ESRIBTHAERRACES s

NZZ-ZF=-A=+—H BEERIETBAERAEAR
AREEAERAE (ERREBEME 671 BEEFH RHRE
DI ES RGO DEXVED 2 - HEERNDHEFFE
EARIEES RAEEOIEXVES 7 R8N BEMERAF R
RO SMERAR (TMRA)) 2 amRER (BERE
EH LB RIBRIGEXESEREFIRREE 2 EEHE
B HIREBEH RHIE RPISE 362 (RAE RN IR ATl 2
Bz msER  JRBEIZR ETARAE .61 (FAM
EANF R EEKERAT

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the (a) KRS EBRKLIBRERNDCER
Company
Type of interests and Percentage
number of shares held Number of the
ERERRFERGEE of share Company’s
Personal Other options issued share
Name of director interest interest held Total capital
HARRAT
Pt EEITRA
EEpnE BARERE HithREzs IBREHE st Aok
(Note)
(Wtst)
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin 52,950,000 - - 52,950,000 3.39%
MREFT S
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong - 24,806,000 234,995 25,040,995 1.60%
FolE kA4
Note: These shares are registered in the name of Eaglemax International Investment Limited et - 3% #HE BE 19 TY LA Eaglemax International Investment Limited
(“EIIL”), a company owned by Inteligent Management Limited (“IML”) as the trustee of ([ENL)) Z 2 EETFA © %72 FH Inteligent Management
Intelligent Management Discretionary Trust, a family discretionary trust, the objects of Limited ([IML1) BA =R #& % # 12 5t Intelligent Management
which include Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, his family and any charity in the world. As at 31 Discretionary Trust < ZFEASHOHE + ZEETIXHAR
March 2010, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong held the entire issued share capital of IML. By virtue FEETIEEERERBURSREMEESEE - R —
of SFO, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong has an interest of such shares. TE=ZA=1+—H FIREEFBMLEIEEITRA
IRIEES REE G - TOUR S ERARERN 2 s o
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BEEgRE (8)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERRER

As at 31 March 2010, the following persons (not being the directors and chief RZZE-ZF=ZA=1+—0 HEIHFRIEKRHNEXVIEE2
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying R 3D EIESCIB T kB AR R AIEIRGIZE 336 IRHERATFELE
shares or debentures of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of R Araesk e AREIRG - HERNSKES 2 EENERZ
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under AT GEARBEERFETHAE)AT ¢

Section 336 of the SFO as follows: —

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests Shares Held capital
HE 8T
B»E RAEE >
REREHE ERME ROHE BHEDL
Ms. Hsu Chia-Huey Beneficial B zx 55,470,628 3.55%
Hsu Chia-Huey Z =+ Attributable interest of 117,745,000 7.53% (Note 1)
controlled corporation (KiaE1)
FEAE S PRHI A AR
Ms. Chu Ya Hsin Beneficial B 2% 106,500,000 6.81%
Chu Ya Hsin &zt Attributable interest of 85,090,909 5.44% (Note 2)
controlled corporation (Kizt2)
FEAE 16 A AR
Notes: Mt
(1) 117,745,000 Shares, representing approximately 7.53% of the total issued share capital of (1) 117,745,000 R A& 15 (FHE R AR T 2B EITIRAL 7.53%) B
the Company, were held by Extra Bright Trading Limited, which was owned as to 51% by Extra Bright Trading Limited#$% + 5’2 7] EiHsu Chia-HueyZ T
Ms. Hsu Chia-Huey. Ms. Hsu Chia-Huey was therefore deemed to be interested in 7.53% of A51% ° EIlt * Hsu Chia-Huey & 1R 1K % % & B & (6B 18 A&
the issued share capital of the Company under the SFO. AR A B BITIRAN R 7.53% HEas ©
(2) 85,090,909 Shares, representing approximately 5.44% of the total issued share capital of (2) 85,090,909 % f& 1 (FEE M AR F 2 HEEITIRAL5.44%) B
the Company, were held by Maxbase Holdings Limited, which in turn was 50% held by Ms. Maxbase Holdings Limited #8 - %A R)E Chu Ya Hsin Z +#54
Chu Ya Hsin. Ms. Chu Ya Hsin was therefore deemed to be interested in 5.44% of the issued 50% ° HItt * Chu Ya Hsin&Z £IRIEE H MG GGG RIRALR
share capital of the Company under the SFO. AR BT A 5.44% HEas o
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, there was no person (not being BREXHEEEN RZTE-—SF=A=+—08  BEEMFA
the directors and chief executives of the Company) who had any interests or short TOERRREEZREEITRAER) BABHLHEKAEXV
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company under the HPEE 2 I 39 ARG SCIE T Bk 8 55 e BRE 41711 28 336 1648 E 2817
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the BZ2ERMATRSEZ ARERG « HERGRESF 2wk
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO. S
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irectors’ Report (Continued)
EEERE (8)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 69% of the total purchases of the Group and the purchases from
the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately 23%.

The sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 71%
of the total sales for the year and the sales to the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 27%.

None of the directors, their respective associates and shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group for the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the year are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors, the substantial shareholders or the management shareholders
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in any business which
competed with or might compete with the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 5.34 OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

The Company has complied with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules concerning
board practices and procedures during the year ended 31 March 2010.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
March 2010.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in August 2001 with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.29 to 5.32 of the GEM Listing Rules. The duties
of the Audit Committee are to review and to provide supervision over the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group. The Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Li Zhe, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze.

During the year, the Audit Committee has met four times to review the results of the
Group.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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Directors’ Report [Contln
EEgHE (&

AUDITOR 1% 8

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited. BB EEZGTMEHER AR SR BT ERE -

BDO Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A BB EEZEMEERERARTHER A EMRE

resolutiion will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the Company to re- BIEREE - ARAIENKREBAFEARE HIE2REER B
appoint Messrs. BDO Limited as auditor of the Company. BB EESEHMEEER AR ANA R EED o

By Order of the Board AEZGD

Wong Hoi Wong *E

Chairman FalE

Hong Kong, 25 June 2010 &8 ZE2—ZTFXA=1+AH
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www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax: +852 2815 2239

BEE © +852 2541 5041
55 : +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THIZ TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(BPERRHASEEARAR)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Thiz Technology Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 26 to 93, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the loss and cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 3(a) to the financial
statements which indicates that as at 31 March 2010, the Group’s net liabilities
amounted to HK$7,208,000. These conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in note 3(a), indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the successful outcome of the measures being undertaken by
the directors to ensure that the Group is able to generate sufficient cash resources to
meet its future working capital requirements and financial obligations.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Pak Ki
Practising Certificate Number: PO1330

Hong Kong, 25 June 2010
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ=ZT—TF=A=+—HILFE

Notes
s
Turnover e 4
Cost of sales SHERA
Gross profit EF
Other revenue HmlA 4
Impairment loss on deferred IRIEF TR A
development costs BIBEEE 16
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEA
General and administrative expenses —RRITBER
Finance costs A& R A 6
Loss before taxation BB AT ES B 7
Taxation FiE 10(a)
Loss for the year AEEER
Attributable to: VN
Owners of the Company AARHEBA
Minority interests DER R S
Loss per share: BREE 13
- Basic and diluted (in cents) —EARREE (L)

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FEx

2009
—TTNEF
HK$’000
FHBIT

7,555

(6,564)

991

1,037

(10,822)
(306)
(16,083)

(1,724)

(26,907)

3,357

(23,550)

(23,550)

(23,550)

2.0)




Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Minority interests

Notes
B 5
REFEE
Hith 2 EUes
MEE R Z5
RNEFEZHK AT

THREAFRE 2SR

RATRHEEA
DHIRR S

BRI SR E AR AR 27 20105}

2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FEx

2009

T NEF
HK$’000
FHIT

(23,550)

348

(23,202)

(23,202)

(23,202)




e BRI

At31 March2010 —ZE—ZF=A=+—H

Notes
s
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - R N&E 14
Deferred development costs IEEF R A 16
Current assets REEE
Inventories PEa= 17
Trade receivables FEMBRTE 18
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H A ERGRIE © ke RIEMNKIEA
Tax recoverable AU EIRiE
Cash and bank balances e RIRITETT 19
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FEABRTE 20
Other payables, deposits received and accruals ~ HAbEMFIE - EliL e RIERTHE 21
Amount due to director R ERRE 22
Amount due to the spouse of a director RN EREERIE 23
Tax payable FESTIE 24
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (AR FE
Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBESE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables Eoth A kA 21
Amount due to director JEREEHIA 22
Net liabilities BE%E

Thiz Technology Group Limited 28
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2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FEx

2009
—TTNEF
HK$’000
FHBIT

636
1,200

1,836

352
729
1,128

13,660

15,864

656
28,008
8,710
2,058
219

39,651

(23,787)

(21,951)

(21,951)




At 31 March 2010

Notes
P
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 25
Reserves s
Equity attributable to owners of ENGIE SN
the Company FEAE Rt

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 25 June 2010.

WONG HOI WONG LIN EN FU
Director Director

BRI SR E AR AR 29

2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FEx

REMBRIAR (B)

—Z—ZETHF=-A=+—H

2009

T NEF
HK$’000
FHIT

130,274
(152,225)

(21,951)

EFBRERN T -TFRNA - +thALESSIERIRE
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tement of Financial Position

BRI R

At31 March2010 —ZE—ZF=A=+—H

Notes
s
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries FrGH B AR 2 #Em 15
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H A EWGRIE - ke RIEMNKIEA
Cash and bank balances e RIRITETT 19
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H AR08
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBEME
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEB B A RIFIA 15
Net assets EEFE
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves ERREE
Share capital (&N 25
Reserves i 28
Total equity AR

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 25 June 2010.

WONG HOI WONG
Director

LIN EN FU
Director

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FEx

2009
—TTNEF
HK$’000
FHBIT

10,268

9,266

9,268

2,370

6,898

17,166

19

17,147

130,274
(113,127)

17,147

IERBBERN - F A ThAKEFSHERKE
g -

M
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2010
—E-%F
HK$000
TER

Cash flows from operating activities REERCHEERE
Loss before taxation FRE AR
Adjustments for: HE
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B ARz WS
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE
plant and equipment K (Was) 518
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y - WS KRR
Interest income FLEMA
Interest expenses FMBFMAX
Impairment loss on trade receivables BN ARE R ERE
Provision for obsolete and slow BERBHEFERE
moving inventories
Depreciation e
Amortisation i
Impairment loss on deferred IRIEF B AR E 1B
development costs
Write-off of other receivables E fty FEUCRIE M 8

Operating loss before working capital changes “EE &S B 2LEHR

(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEM), B
Increase in trade receivables FEUBRIEE N
Decrease in other receivables, Hh U IE - e Rk
deposits and prepayments TERFIER L
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERHERIE CR ),/ n
Decrease in other payables, deposits received ~ H#bENFIE « EUIE S MR
and accruals IER
Decrease in amount due to director FEREEFERD
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes INESTE R B E) o &
Cash used in operations REEKFARS
Interest received B S
Interest paid BAFLE
Tax paid BB
Net cash outflow from operating activities RS HES R FE
Cash flows from investing activities REZBH HERE
Payments to acquire property, REWE
plant and equipment VPG AN
Sales proceeds of property, HEME - BERXBERSRIE
plant and equipment
Decrease/(increase) in time deposit with BRI A HRRETEIH A
original maturity of more than HEm={EHEH
three months when acquired TERos L/ (Em)
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHRBARZRERAFRE
(Note 29) (Mf3E29)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RETHZRESHRACRil) B8

investing activities

BRI SR E AR AR 31 20105}

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZE—-F

RERERER

P~ T A=+ —AILFE

2009
—TTNF
HK$’000
FHT

(26,907)

66
134

(23)
1,724
152

495
1,132
2,880

10,822
137

(9,388)
147
(380)

423
315

(1,439)
(19)
(42)

(10,379)
23
(1,600)
(1,187)

(13,143)

(105)

52

(8,000)

(8,053)
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L abonsolidated Statement of
ZEEEREXR (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ=ZT—TF=A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-BF —TThEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FiIT
Cash flows from financing activities MEIBHHEERE
Repayment of loans EEEXR (6,400)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRDFTSRIA 21,713
Share issue expenses R B TR (212)
Net cash inflow from financing activities METHZHERATE 15,101
Net increase/(decrease) in BeRALEEER
cash and cash equivalents M, CRD) FE (6,095)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RENzEERBEEEER 11,755
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZAESRRLEHEER
(Note 19) (BF3E19) 5,660
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idated Statement of Changes in Eqij'
mEEEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZE=-T—ZTHF=F=1+—HILFE

Convertible Total

preference attributable

Capital shares to owners

Share Share  redemption equity Special  Translation Accumulated of the
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Company
LA

&X  TRRER BBA

R R EE BEfE RERRE KRG ERRE RiHER  EEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER AR AR TAT TAER ThER TET
(Note 28(a))  (Note 28(b))  (Note 28(c))  (Note 28(d))
(Witosm)  (HWitosp)  (Mit2se)  (Hit28)

Balance at 1 April 2008 RZTTNF
mA—Bz#&#% 104,561 26,818 84 789 360 4,038 (162,102) (25,452)

Total comprehensive income KEE2EYESRE

for the year - - - - - 348 (23,550) (28,202
Conversion of convertible ERARRELR

preference shares 4,000 1,991 - (789) - - - 5,202
Shares issued and related expenses = %{TH (7 kA

in subscription of ordinary shares @B 2B 21,713 @12 - - - - - 21,501

Balance at 31 March 2009 and
at 1 April 2009

mA—Bz&% 130,274 28,597 84 - 360 4,386 (185,652) (21,951)
Total comprehensive income AEEEENGEE
for the year - . - - - @) (10049  (10,952)
Shares issued and related BEIRNR
expenses in subscription RELER
of ordinary shares HEERX 26,000 (305) - - - - - 25,695
Balance at 31 March 2010 R-Z-ZF=f8
=t-AzE&sH 156,274 28,292 84 - 360 4,383 (196,601) (7,208)
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31 March2010 —F—FF=A=+—H

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Cap.22 Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 6 December 2000. The
address of its registered office and principal place of business are Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37 Ma Tau
Wai Road, To Kwa Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM”) on 27 July 2001.

On 11 October 2002, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
approved the establishment of Level 1 American Depository Receipt program for
the Company’s shares in the United States of America.

The Group engages in (i) an information technology industry, in which, it is a
developer and provider of a range of Linux solutions including Linux operating
systems, application systems run on Linux and (i) trading business. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 June
2010.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has adopted the following new/revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”) that are
effective for the current accounting period.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008,
except for the amendment to HKFRS 5
that is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
REBNELINVEFEEBI7FAMHER LBESE
810%=

ARABNHR_FEZ—FLA T LEHETBHARS
PRrERARIAIZER ([RIXR]) £ -

“RECETAT R XEEFRHREGHARK
REROPEERLFE - REERSFFIOREE -

REBYEENENRRE - P A RIRH—ZRTLinuxi#
R BRELNuEEZRS « LnuxERES L ()E %
% o ZEMBAT 2 EBHAR I IEREMTES o

BIERBMIE  WEERMBMRAETEY - ILFER
AUBBRRENR_Z—ZFA-+HAEERSIE
R RETE -

RSB RS EN( SBUNHREE
A1)

(a) HREMHSIRAIEET S M TEIRSEER]

AEEERAN T EEB SRS (BB G
RE ) PRI A G 5 IR Rz 3R] IERT
BEPBHEER -

BB SR HR_FTT)\FHEMZ
(ERTA) EEPBWMEEAZ
B - R ZFTN
FEA—RHZRERH
M2 FEHRENZ
BRPBWMEERE

5SRAERT BRI

ANNUAL REPORT 2010



PAT R R MR ()

31March2010 —Z—ZF=A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. #RinSEBRESER ([ SBUHRSE

STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued) a)1) (&)
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) FREFRS] RREES] BTSSR (48)
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in BB GRE LR HR_ZEZNFEMZ
relation to the amendment to paragraph ({&3TAR) EBPIEREER 2
80 of HKAS 39 M - R AR g
ZERIEE 3957 25 80 B,
PACEIFS
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements EEGTERE 15 BTk 2 25
(#81&5T)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs BB GFTAER|E 235 BEERA
(#81&5T)
HKAS 32 and 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and BEEGEAERTR  FUAEEeRIARER
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation %155 (IBETA) EEZEE
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly EBUBHELELE1SHE RHBRF - LRIEH)
(Amendments) Controlled Entity or Associate REBGENE27TS FRIWEQRZE
(EFTA) B2 KA
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations BB HRELERE 2  BBIFTREH
(EFTA)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial BEUBHREENE 7R NEFHEESRITAZE
Instruments (ERTA) %=
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments BB HRELRESH KLE2HH
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 9~ Embedded derivatives &E (RRMBRERE BAXTETAR
and HKAS 39 ZE®)-RBRFEIR
(Amendments) RBEBGAERIE 395
(EFTA)
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 13  Customer Loyalty Programmes 8 (EBITHRERE FPEHE
ZEg)-BBFE 3%
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real 55 (BREsHERE HEEHMEZHER
Estate ZEg)-REF15%
HK(FRIC)-Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign B8 (BB BHRE2E NEINEEEBFRE
Operation ZEg)-REBFE16 ZETH
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 18  Transfers of Assets from Customers HE (BB HERERE BRFPEREEE

Z8g) REF189%
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. IMNSBUBRSERN (SBUBRSE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS q11) (48)

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) FREAFRSTRENZS] S8 MTFS RS ER (48)

The adoption of the above new/revised HKFRSs had no material effect on
the reported results or financial position of the Group for both the current
and prior reporting periods, except for the following changes:-

HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”

The revised standard affects certain disclosures of financial statements.
Under the revised standard, the Income Statement, the Balance Sheet
and the Cash Flow Statements are renamed as the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position and the
Statement of Cash Flows respectively. All income and expenses arising
from transactions with non-owners are presented under the Statement of
Comprehensive Income; while the owners’ changes in equity are presented
under the Statement of Changes in Equity.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segment”

HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting, and requires operating
segment to be identified on the basis of internal reports of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker in order to
allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.
As the business segments reported by the Group in accordance with
the requirements of HKAS 14 are the same as the operating segments
provided to the chief operating decision-maker as required by HKFRS 8,
there are no changes to the operating segments and the relevant segment
information on the adoption of HKFRS 8.

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving Disclosures about Financial
Statements

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosure relating to fair
value measurements for financial instruments that are measured at fair
value and liquidity risk of financial liabilities. The Group has not provided
comparative information for the expanded disclosures in accordance with
the transitional provision.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
operations, have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendment to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendment to HK(IFRIC) —

Interpretation 14

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 17

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 19

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs!

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010°

Classification of Rights Issues®

Eligible Hedged Items'

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters*

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 for First-time Adopters®

Share-based Payment — Group Cash-
settled Share-based Payment
Transactions*

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirements’

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'’
Business Combinations’

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments®
Related Party Disclosures’

Financial Instruments®

BN REER AT

37

s to the Financial Statements [Continué
B s =B aE (48)

31 March 2010

—E-TF=RA=1+—H

2. NS EMBHREE( SEMBHRSEE

8 1) (7&)

(b) BREWRCEBUBFREEVEECBERE

TR e AR R BB LR H R 2 ] HEIET &
BUBHREEADEMAERDRER BN RERER

BB -

BRI REZER
(BFTA)

BRI REZER
(BFTA)

BB RS 2R
(BFTA)

HEETEAE 2L
CHIES

HEETERE 9
CHIES

EEM RS ERE K
ZAERIA

EEM RS ERE K
ZAERIA

ERM RS ERE 255
ZAERIA

B (BRI KRERe
ZEg)-REBF14%
ZIEETA

BEEGFERE 275
(#185T)

BB RS ERIE 35
(#185T)

B (BRI ks Re
ZEG)-BBEITH

B (BRI ks Re
ZEg)-REBFE19R

BEBGFHERE 2457
(#185T)

BB RS ERIE IR

2010 F 5

BB RS LR
EEWMZIERTA - 1FR
HRH B EERL
2z —ED

H_ZTNFERUG
SR 2 ke

H T -TFEERBUH
SR 2

Rz 2 HES

BEREMIAR !

BRI INE 2B R

BN ERREEY
BIREERE TR
BEARZBR#BRO

VAR BB 2 5K —
SRR HEE AR
RERZNFR 5"

REESERZENRT

RE MBI BERR

ES N

MEEADIKIEESE
§1
LA AT BEIRESHE
&

B N LHREET

SRIAS



tes to the Financial Statements [ﬁdhtl
B R R Mt ()

31 March 2010

—T-TF=A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet effective

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January
2010, as appropriate

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and 1 January
2011, as appropriate

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting
for business combinations for which the acquisition dates are on or after
1 April 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary. Changes in
the Group’s ownership interest that do not result in loss of control of the
subsidiary will be accounted for as equity transactions.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of other new/revised HKFRSs and the directors so far concluded
that the application of the other new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation of financial

statements

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention in accordance with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

At 31 March 2010, the Group had capital deficiency of HK$7,208,000. In
the opinion of the directors, the Group has adopted the following measures
with a view to improve the Group’s overall financial position, immediate
liquidity and cash flows in order to sustain the Group to continue its
business as a going concern:
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation of financial

statements (Continued)

i) On 7 June 2010, the Company announced that it has entered into
subscription agreements on 7 June 2010 pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue (pursuant to the specific mandate) and
the subscribers agreed to subscribe an aggregate of 120,000,000
new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.1 per share. The
subscription agreements are scheduled to become unconditional on
or before 31 July 2010. The estimated net proceeds of the issue of
the new shares will amount to approximately HK$11,700,000. The
Company intends to use the net proceeds for improving the working
capital, exploring new business opportunities and expanding the
existing business of the Group;

i) On 31 March 2010, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, a director of the Company
and a borrower confirmed in writing to the Group that no demand
for settlement of the advances of HK$8,710,000 and HK$8,528,000
respectively would be made within 12 months from the end of
reporting period;

i) The directors are actively exploring new business opportunities in
order to revitalise the Group; and

The directors have taken stringent cost-saving measures to
streamline the Group’s existing operations and to strengthen its
financial control.

In the opinion of the directors, if the above measures accomplish the
expected results, the Group will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its
future working capital requirements and financial obligations. Accordingly,
the directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare these financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The applicability of the going concern basis depends on the successful
completion of the issue of the new shares. The financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result if the issue of the new shares
would not proceed. If the issue of the new shares would not proceed, or
if the going concern basis was not to be appropriate, adjustments would
have to be made to the financial statements to reduce the value of the
assets of the Group to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation of financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting polices. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note
36.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired and disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the
subsidiary to bring its accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group enterprises are eliminated on consolidation.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment on the asset transferred.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Group has the power, to govern the
financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account.

Investment in the subsidiaries is included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. Historical cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its present working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the asset has been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is charged to income
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the assets, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset or a separate
asset.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost, over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

33%
14%-33%
14%-20%

20%

Computer equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis and include all costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and conditions. Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
anticipated sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course of business
less estimated selling expenses after the end of reporting period or to
management estimates based on prevailing market conditions.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where

the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms

require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the

market concerned, are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction

costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through

profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. During the year, the

Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables, which are

subsequently accounted for as follows:

)

i)

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

The objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

—  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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s to the Financial Statements (Continue

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)

i)

i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)

iv)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

(g) Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued by the Group

i)

i)

iv)

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair
value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised
on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

0]

(0]

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held at
call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Contingent liabilities

m

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenses are also written off as incurred except for those
incurred for specific projects which are deferred where recoverability can
be foreseen with reasonable assurance and comply with the following
criteria: (i) the product or process is clearly defined and the costs are
separately identified and measured reliably; (i) the technical feasibility of
the product or process is demonstrated; (iii) the product or process will
be sold or used in-house; (iv) a potential market exists for the product or
process or its usefulness in the case of internal use is demonstrated; and (v)
adequate technical, financial and other resources required for completion
of the product or process are available.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the expected economic useful lives of the products,
subject to a maximum period of five years commencing in the year when
the products are put into commercial production.
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s to the Financial Statements (Continue

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding

goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

i)

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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s to the Financial Statements (Continue

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)
i) Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Translation of foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the results and financial position of each group entity
are expressed in Hong Kong dollar which is the functional currency of the
Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise except for:

—  exchange differences which relate to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign
currency borrowings; and

—  exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur, which form part of the net investment in a foreign operation,
and which are recognised in the translation reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are expressed in Hong
Kong dollar using exchange rates prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during the
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as translation reserve.
Such translation differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Employees’ benefits

i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end of reporting
period.

i) Pension obligations
Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme as required

under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are charged to profit or loss when incurred.
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s to the Financial Statements (Continue

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit or loss in the year in
which they are incurred.

Related parties

Two parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals (being members
of key management personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close
family members) or other entities and include entities which are under the
significant influence of related parties of the Group where those parties are
individuals, and post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Share-based payment transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”).
The cumulative expenses recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(t)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification, which increases the total fair
value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted
for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect
of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled
awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 January
2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January 2005.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances and exclude value added tax or other sales
related taxes.

i) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of goods have been transferred to the
buyers.

i) Income from training services is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of training.

i) Income from consultancy services is recognised to the extent of
services rendered and according to the terms of the agreement.

iv)  Income from licencing of Linux based software is recognised when
the Group’s entitlement to such payment has been established which
is upon the delivery of the holographic label to customers.

v)  Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis, taking into

account the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates
applicable.
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4. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

Turnover represents the invoiced value of the Group’s Linux based software

and hardware products distributed, computers and household goods sold and

training income, after allowances for returns and discounts and net of value
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added tax. An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other revenue is as follows: T
Turnover: S

Distribution of Group’s Linux based software 2 S AN S B Linux B4

Sale of computers and household goods HEBKRERBER

Licence income HEUA

Training income A
Other revenue: HAUA -

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBARZiE

Interest income MEWA

Sundry income MIBUA

Consultancy fee income BER B WA

BIES RIS MAR AR 53 2010 F 5

2010 2009

S i s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T

1,249
5,566
194
546

7,555

23
37
977

1,037
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31 March2010 =—ZE—ZF=HA=+—H

5. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports reviewed by
the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. Details of the business segments are summarised as
follows:-

(@) the software development segment that engages in the development and
sales of Linux based software and hardware products;

(o)  the trading business segment that engages in the trading of computers and
household goods; and

(c) the training service segment that engages in the provision of training
services on Linux based software.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and tax recoverable
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There was no inter-segment sale or transfer during the year (2009: HK$Nil).
Central revenue and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments as
they are not included in the measurement of the segments’ loss that is used by
the chief operating decision-makers for assessment of segment performance.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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AEBZR T ZEERREMBH YRR R WS

EEELEDR -
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SHE

P R

3

() BREBHE LEEMEREARE

(0 HBINIRMBHEL + 2 Linux B 2 553 R ©
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B -
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments

PAT R R MR ()

31March 2010 —F—TF=A=1+—H

5. NNEPERS (18)

(a) EBNI
Software Trading Training
development business services Consolidated
BmR EUES AR ga
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-%F “TTNF ZB-BF “TTNF ZT-ZF _TTNF ZB-BF “TTHF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEx TET TR  TEr  TExn  TET  FER  TER

Revenue from external
customers
Inter-segment revenue

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment loss

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Other segment information:

Interest revenue

Finance costs

Depreciation and
impairment losses

Unallocated depreciation

Total depreciation and
impairment losses

Unallocated income tax credit

Additions to non-current assets

Unallocated additions
to non-current assets

Total additions
1o non-current assets

RENREFZBA

DEERA
DE=: V1 UON
PES- S
AE2ENHEAE
PE Vs
Hibn AR
MBMA
BANA
FERHERE
AOEHE

FERHERRER

14,834
RORMREHESR (3,575)
ANEFRBEE 105
FABRFNERRDEE

MNEFRYEELE
105

HEMAEESRAT 55
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31 March 2010 —F—TF=A=1+—H

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, assets

and liabilities

5. NEPHRE (18)

(b) TISWRNFPiEL  BERSBZHIE

Loss before taxation BRBE A 518

Reportable segment loss A 2WHEEE

Other revenue EAb A

Corporate and other NAREMADEEFAE
unallocated expenses

Finance costs RE AR

Consolidated loss before BTSRRI A B
income tax

Assets EE

Reportable segment assets A 2HRDEEE

Tax recoverable AT eI E

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER

Unallocated corporate assets RO RBIEE

Consolidated total assets mEAERE

Liabilities =L

Reportable segment liabilities AI2wHEaE

Tax payable JE R IE

Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBATEE

Consolidated total liabilities meaERsE

Thiz Technology Group Limited 56
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2010
—E-EF
HK$°000
T

2010
—E-FF
HK$°000
TR

2010
—E-EF
HK$°000
T

2009
—TTNEF
HK$'000
FHBIT

(21,020
1,037

(5,200)
(1,724)

(26,907)

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHIT

3,383

13,660
657

17,700

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHIT

(11,859)
219)
(27,573)

(39,651)
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. NEPWMES (48)
(c) Geographic information (c) HhignEpERl
During the reporting period, the Group’s operations and non-current REmEHR  AEE 2 EXBRIFERDEE (IR
assets other than financial instruments (specified non-current assets) are (B TEIEREBEE)BRINMNREE « A& - FEAR
located in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the People’s Republic of China (“Mainland HFE([hEA])  ZERFR - WTNEEIER
China”), the United Kingdom and Middle East. The specified non-current EEEAR A EEMTEE S -

assets information below is based on the location of assets.

Segment information of the Group by geographical locations by customer WMEFHEMEI D AEE 2 HEBERIOT ¢
is presented as below:

Hong Kong Taiwan PRC The United Kingdom Middle East Others Consolidated
Bt )] L #8 hR AE &a
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
-3 CETNF CB-BF CEENE CE-%F CETNE CB-%F CEINE CB-BF CEENE CB-BF CZINE CEB-BE CEINE
HK$000  HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000  HKS(000
Tén  TEr  TER  TEr TR TEr  TErn  TEr  TRn  TEr  TEn T TEn TR

Revenue fom RESNREP

external customers BA

Specified non-curent  EFER)

assels EE
(d) Information about major customers d) EFBEFPZER

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there were three customers AEEZEPERS  HR =% (ZTThF: W
(2009: two) with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s B)BPZRXGEEAERBAZ10% UL - R=ZF
revenue. In 2010, revenue from three customers in the trading business —ZF REFEBIMBEZ=-BEFPMFEZHKA
segment amounted to approximately HK$1,936,000, HK$896,000 and 2 R14941,936,0007 7T + 896,000 7T 1 895,000
HK$895,000 (2009: revenue from two customers in the trading business T(ZEZNF  REGEBSHAMBEFAGEZ

segment amounted to approximately HK$3,116,000 and HK$1,449,000). WA 5 B4 /3,116,000 7T & 1,449,000 4 7T)

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. &R

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TTNEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHEx FHT

Effective interest expenses on convertible AR ELERERF SRS (Hit26)

preference shares (note 26) 63
Interest payable to a director (note 22) ERESERNE (Hat22) 449
Interest payable to the spouse of R EREEFL (A7t 23)

a director (note 23) 112
Other loan interest (note 21) HAME SRR B (Hat2t) 1,100

1,724

BRI SR E AR AR 57 2010 45
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31 March2010 =—ZE—ZF=HA=+—H

7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7. PBRWtAIRSIE

2010 2009
—E-EF ZZTNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FRT
Loss before taxation is arrived FREATESIBAIE(GEA)

at after charging/(crediting):- TF&IE -

Cost of inventories sold BEETFEKA 6,012
Cost of services rendered RAEARFS A A 57
Depreciation e 1,132
Amortisation of deferred development costs 1A B3 A A 5

(included in general and administrative (BIA—RRATHFR)

expenses) 2,880
Minimum operating lease payments:- KERE 2 RIEAEREE -

Buildings BgF 1,929
Auditor’s remuneration BRI & 320
Staff costs BIRA

(excluding directors’ emoluments):- (TEREEEMR) -

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAAER 4,514

Pension scheme contributions RIRE IR 1,019

5,533
Provision for obsolete and slow B R HFERE

moving inventories 495
Impairment loss on deferred BIEFRE A 2 REEE

development costs 10,822
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEMBRIER B ESTE 152
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, LEYE - BERE

plant and equipment PACEIVY iF - 66
Write-off of proeprty, plant and equipment W - BB KR AN 134
Write-off of other receivables HoAh fEMCRIAM 8 137
Net exchange loss/(gain) fE R 518, (e ) 558 (4)

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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31March 2010 —F—TF=A=1+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. EBNSMRITHASZHME
EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursued to the GEM Listing Rules and @@ REBEFERETMRAUWREBSAREIIEI61G  EF
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:- e ENT
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits contributions Total
e RER BIRE
EERE HA3E R FHEIERR st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FTERT FTERT FTET

2010 —E-2F
Executive directors:- WITESE -
Wong Hoi Wong FiliE
Lin En Fu MAEE
Yuan Luke Tsu =BT
Non-executive directors:- FEHITES -
Lin Chien Hsin IR
Hsieh Yi Chen WEZ
Wu Chiao Ru JuSsy
Independent non-executive directors:- B IEHITES -
Chan Mei Sze BRERE
Li Zhe psi)
Chu Meng Chi KaH
2009 —TThF
Executive directors:- WITES -
Wong Hoi Wong Tz - 697 12 709
Lin En Fu ) - 462 - 462
Yuan Luke Tsu =T 57 - - 57
Non-executive directors:- EMITES
Lin Chien Hsin RIS 57 - - 57
Hsieh Yi Chen WEZE 57 - - 57
Wu Chiao Ru ART54A 57 - - 57
Independent non-executive directors:- B IERITESE ¢
Chan Mei Sze PRERS 57 - - 57
Li Zhe B”E 57 - - 57
Chu Meng Chi SEE 57 - - 57

399 1,159 12 1,670
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@

(Continued)

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments, and neither incentive payment nor compensation
for loss of office was paid to any director during the current and prior year.

As at 31 March 2010, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong had an option to purchase
234,995 shares in the Company granted to him on 21 November 2001
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 6 July 2001 as detailed
in note 27 to the financial statements.

Details of emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals during the
year included two directors (2009: two directors) whose emoluments are
set out above. Details of remuneration of the remaining three (2009: three)
highest paid employees of the Group during the year are as follows:

ESKSRITBAEZME (18)

(@)

(%)

RAFERBEFE  HECAEEFRERRAETR
REMME 2 R85  REEEA RN R R AR

2 MEZNTERNES -

RZZE—ZTF=A=+—0 ' BER=ZZZT—Ft
RANBERAZERETSE  TolRECEFEEES
ARARZZEE—F+—AZ+—HREKHH

234,995 %15 - BRI T BmERMEE27 ©

RERARALELERHFALTEERLER(ZETH
FMBER) NS ZFEHIW L - RFA -
FEEZHBT=Z2(ZTTNF : ZR)ReHEER
ZWEZ FEHSIWT

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits & - 285 R A 12 F
Pension scheme contributions BRIKSETEME R

The aggregate emoluments of each of the highest paid employees was less
than HK$1,000,000 for the current and prior year.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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9.

10.

s to the Financial Statements (Continue

PAT R R MR ()

31March2010 —Z—ZF=A=+—H

PENSION SCHEMES 9. RffE5t3l
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund AEBEREAEBIERABESFEGH - BEMBEERKS
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident f \;,Jrilj ZIEE IR Eg@ BE| M ATESIRKREF 2 ([
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of those employees who are eligible to Sl - BESE A _TETF A —HEEAE
participate in the scheme. The MPF Scheme has operated since 1 December FA{ c AEBIZEBEAHESE A O LIEHMER  RNA
2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic RIBRESTERBEH R REEBREARNIG - 8iES
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance HAECEEFERBUEEREES  BAEEZEESHEF
with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held B AEERRESFEEL 2 BREHRZERESF
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The A
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are RPRLEEZ RAARNBARZEEELEAE TR
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local FEEz P RBARESTE - ZEFREMBRARBRTS
municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a H—HomPhRERESTENELH - AREIREET
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The central ZAYNE2EORINEB ZAARKS  MASEEHA
pension scheme is responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to TEERIIN BRINBEFEE -
all retired employees and the Group has no further obligations for the pension
payments on post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The Group’s contributions to pension schemes for the year ended 31 March REBEE_Z-—TF=FA=+—HILFE  AEEEHER
2010 amounted to HK$530,000 (2009: HK$1,031,000). K& 5t 2814 530,000 7T ( ZEZ N4 : 1,031,000
T e
TAXATION 10. 18
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: @ #HFEERXIBIARSE -
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHER FAT
The Group: REHE :
Current — Hong Kong FEBIE-RFEEBNED
Over-provision in respect of prior years BT FERRERE - (3,357)
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009: BEMNGRIDRBRFEEEBEE 2 REHERT
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during IR E16.5%( ZETLF « 16.5% ) fEH B -
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at H it 75 2 FERE R R B DR IE AR R B A8 2 275
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, ZRIEBEREZRITHERWIRRAED  BERE
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect BIETE - R - BRANEBMAFERFEEE R
thereof. However, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax and PRC EEHBBFEH PR EMEHRE -
enterprise income tax of the Group has been made as the Group sustained
losses for the year.
ENE R SR BB R AR 61 2010 45




-';“f‘ to the Financial Statements
' B ER R M5 (48)

31 March2010 =—ZE—ZF=HA=+—H

10. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 10. I8 (£8)
(b) Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled as follows:- (o) AFEMSHERLRMOT ¢
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZTNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FTT

Loss before taxation B ATE B (26,907)
Income tax calculated at Hong Kong profits #£16.5% (ZZTZNF : 16.5%)
tax rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) ZBEEFIEH
BiRETHE 2 ST (4,440)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AL 2 B2 1,236
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses AERHBBB MG E 4,374
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries REMBIEEEREE
operating in other jurisdictions ZWBRBTRBE BT E (1,139)
Tax effect of unrecognised RERRRETBRE
decelerated tax allowances % (13)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B LA R IR B IE S 18
tax losses (18)
Over provision in prior years BEFERERE (3,357)
Income tax credit FriSHii e (3,357)
(c) The components of recognised deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as () CHRAEEHREEE/(8F) 2ERBLWT :
follows:-
Unutilised Deferred
tax development
losses costs Total
REA JEAEBA B
HIEEE A st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FiT
At 1 April 2008 W-ZTE/\FMA—H 2,210 (2,210) -
Credit/(charge) for the year NEEFA(GIKR) (1,910) 1,910 -
At 31 March 2009 RZZEThF=ZA=+—H 300 (300) -
Credit/(charge) for the year REEZFA () (100) 100 -
At 31 March 2010 R-E—ZEF=A=+—H 200 (200) -
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10. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(@

The components of unrecognised deductible/(taxable) temporary
differences are as follows:-

PAT R R MR ()
S|

31 March2010 —ZE—ZTF=A=+—

10. W18 (4&)

() REERAMB,(ERH) LRIEZE 2 AR H 10
T

2010 2009
—2-2% —TThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
B Fi#T

Deductible temporary difference BTN EER
Unutilised tax losses KB ABIBEE
Decelerated tax allowances BRETEE

Taxable temporary differences JERT GRS =R
Accelerated tax allowances IR EE

Note:

Deductible temporary differences have not been recognised in these financial
statements owing to the absence of objective evidence in respect of the availability
of sufficient taxable profits that are expected to arise to offset against the deductible
temporary differences.

The unutilised tax losses accumulated in the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries amounted
to HK$40,496,000 (2009: HK$54,246,000) would expire in five years from the
respective year of loss. The unutilised tax losses accumulated in the Hong Kong
subsidiaries amounted to HK$22,355,000 (2009: HK$22,351,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely. As at 31 March 2010, tax losses aggregated to HK$800,000
(2009: HK$1,200,000) have been recognised as deferred tax assets.

BRI SR E AR AR
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17,249
38

17,287

(8)

17,259

iGE

BN REFEEEASEEEL 2 BRBUS N R AIKIHR]
Mz EHREER - BN B RE NIRRT
HER -

B A TN R) 215 2 K E) A BIE 18 40,496,000 7T
(ZZZNF : 54,246,000 8 70) RSB 2 BIEFERERSF
RERH o BEIHE A 7 218 2 K8 BB IBEE 22,355,000
TL(ZET AL : 22,351,0005870) B AT R HishEE - W=
—THE=f=+—BFIBEES 8000008 T (=TT
4F £ 1,200,000 70) MR ARLERIBEE
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PAT R R MR ()

31 March 2010

11.

12.

13.

—ET-ZTHF=-A=+—8H

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Of the Group’s loss attributable to the owners of the Company, a loss of
HK$2,009,000 (2009: HK$2,343,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2009:
Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2010 is
based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$10,949,000
(2009: HK$23,550,000) and weighted average of 1,476,070,583 (2009:
1,176,082,240) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share for both years is presented as the outstanding share
options were anti-dilutive.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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11.

12.

13.

RSB ABIERHE

EARRNEHEE ABGEAREBEIEFR - 2,009,0008T(=F
TNEF : 2,348,000870) BERAR BB B mK AR

RR

ARRRAFERGRERTREARE (ZZTNE
&) -

sREE

REBEEZZ-—ZTF=-A=-+—BHILFE SRELRE
BIVRARFIEA AEIEETE10,949,0008 L (ZEF
JUE ¢ 23,650,000 7T ) & B BT I T 15 & @ AR
1,476,070,583K (ZZFZ N4 : 1,176,082,240 )51 5 °
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s to the Financial Statements [Continu_e'
BAT5 3R R Mt (48)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. M5 ~ MERR

31 March 2010

—E-TF=RA=1+—H

Computer Office Furniture Motor
equipment equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
BHRE WOERE BRREE RE @st
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET FHET
The Group TEER
Cost:- B
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZTN\FWA—-A 4,635 1,437 1,577 206 7,855
Additions RE 10 3 92 - 105
Disposals HE (719) () - - (724)
Written off 84 (1,032) (75) (509) - (1,616)
Exchange adjustments fEE 5 AR 90 82) @7) (22) 61)
At 31 March 2009 RZZZNE=A=1—H 2,984 1,278 1,113 184 5,559
Additions NE 29 11 63 - 103
Disposals HE (805) - (166) - 971)
Written off Hish (165) (99) (440) - (704)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FAMEATE (593) 22) (50) - (665)
Exchange adjustments i 5, - 5 3 1 9
At 31 March 2010 R-Z2-Z5£=fA=+-H 1,450 1,173 523 185 3,331
Accumulated depreciation:- Gk
At 1 April 2008 RZTZ)\FMA—H 3,646 1,095 999 198 5,938
Charge for the year REELH 719 188 217 8 1,132
Written back on disposals HEER (603) ©) - - (606)
Written off 84 (1,025) (73) (384) - (1,482)
Exchange adjustments fE 5 AR 68 (68) @37 (22) (59)
At 31 March 2009 RZZETNF=RA=+—H 2,805 1,139 795 184 4,923
Charge for the year AFEELH 131 90 94 - 315
Written back on disposals HEEE (794) - (145) - (939)
Written off HisH (155) (79) (346) - (580)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMEATE (576) (18) (16) - 610)
Exchange adjustments i 5, - 4 3 1 8
At 31 March 2010 R-Z2-Z5£=fA=+-H 1,411 1,136 385 185 3,117
Carrying amount:- BREE
At 31 March 2010 RZE-ZH=ZA=+—-H 39 37 138 - 214
At 31 March 2009 RZZETNF=RA=+—H 179 139 318 - 636
B RS B AR AR 65 2010 F 5




otes to the Financial Statements [Cont:i
B T5 R R Mt (48)

31 March2010 —F—FF=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 14. MZ%& -~ BERRE (&)

Computer Office
equipment equipment Total
BIERE WAERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT FTT
The Company NN |
Cost:- AR
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 RZZTZENFIHA—A -
and 31 March 2010 —EENF=A=1+—8H
R=Z-BF=A=+-A 2 3 5
Accumulated depreciation:- REHTE -
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 RZZZENFMOA—H
and 31 March 2010 “EENF=A=1—H
;—F—FF=A=1—H 2 3 5
Carrying amount:- BRTEIE :
At 31 March 2010 R=ZE-ZF=ZH=+-—H - - -
At 31 March 2009 R-ZZFEZhF=A=+—AH - - -
15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. FRiEKt B~ B 2 R
The Company
AT
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETIRRD - RAKA 21 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURH B A B F0E 146,309 122,647
146,330 122,668
Less: Provision for impairment loss A OREE R (146,153) (112,400)
177 10,268
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHTE A RIRIA 19 19
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are interest-free and unsecured. In the B (BB RARRBENREREEA - EER
opinion of the directors, the amount due from/(to) subsidiaries are not repayable & U (FER) B ARIBEAERHEHRL 12
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and was therefore shown AnEE  BRBEiR RS RIERBIER -

in the statement of financial position as non-current.
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31March2010 —Z—ZF=A=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 15. FISMB A T 2 i#s (&)

FN - BERIMNBRARZV B AT EELZEHEA
ARBEEFRESRSBEARENBARR-Z—%
F=ZRA=+—BEEEFE - Bt - 33,753,0008 T2
BINREBEEREE T ZF=-A=-1+—BILFE
FTURR(ZZZNGF : FINAIEETE46,800,000/7T)

During the year, the directors reviewed the financial position of subsidiaries and
identified that the subsidiaries suffered continuous net losses for past several
years and these subsidiaries had net liabilities as at 31 March 2010. Accordingly,
an additional impairment loss of HK$33,753,000 was recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2010 (2009: additional impairment loss of HK$46,800,000).

The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010 are as follows:-

RZZ-—ZF=A=+—H WEARZFEET :

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
Name of company registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
Ediia A ERTEBEREE VNG|
NEER R 2 it B AEfEA FEERERDL FEEH
Direct Indirect
Hi# [SiE3
Thiz Technology British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$ 100 100 - Investment holding
Group Holdings BBRLEE /B 100370 EER
Limited
Thizlinux Inc. British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
EBRELES /B 1370 REER
Thizbiz Inc. British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
EBRELES /B 1370 REER
Thiz. Com Inc. British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong  US$200,000 - 100 Investment holding
RBRLEE/ B 200,000 % 7E BB R
Thiz.Com (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited B 10,000 7T and provision of
BN FIfE e A (%) management
ABRAR services
REER KR HER
R
PC Media, Inc. United States US$50,000 - 100 Dormant
of America Common stock TS
e 50,0003 7T
ENE R SR BB R AR 67 2010 45
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

15. FriGHE AT s (18)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
Name of company registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
A ERTEBEREE VN
IR PSS-Sk M E A FEERERD L TEXEHK
Direct Indirect
HiE [SE3
Thiz Design Group Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited aBH 10,000 % 7T and provision of
management
services
REER R
RHE R RS
Thizlinux Laboratory Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
Limited (“TLL”) BE 10,0007 7T HEET
RIS RGERIR AR A 7]
(FEnEs Z 4t D)
Thizbiz Global Trade Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Development, sales
Limited B 10,000 % 7T and distribution of
B8 5 ERAR Linux based
software and
hardware products
and trading
business
- HERDH
Linux 30AE {4 7= &
Thiz Electronics Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
Company Limited B 10,0007 7T AT
A EFRIRAR DA
The Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
Exchange Limited a5 10,0007 7T AT

BARGAERAT

Thiz Technology Group Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2010



-

==

s to the Financial Statements [Continu_e'

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

31 March 2010

PAT R R MR ()

—E-TF=RA=1+—H

15. PGB E LS i (1)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
Name of company registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
Ediia A ERTEBEREE VNG|
DNEER FEf R & i B A& FEERERDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
=%:3 [SiE3

The Recruitment Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
Database Limited BB 10,0007 7T BEET

IEEILAR AT

Thiz.Com (China) British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$1 - 100 Dormant
Limited KBRS/ B 1370 HmER

Institute of Thiz Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
Technology Limited BB 100,000/ 7T HEET

BNESRL A 2B AR A A)

WEE RS EAR Taiwan NT$1,700,000 - 100 Sales of computer
MEFHARAA] ag 1,700,000 %7 & 1 and Linux
BESNE] based products

HEEM
T Linux 2 &

Beijing Thiz Ying Jia PRC, limited US$1,050,000 - 100 Development of
International Trading liability company 1,050,000 7T Linux based
Co., Limited (“Ying Jia”) B - BREFEAF] software products

Jb TR B & 52 B R and trading
MEBERAR business
(r&zl) R Linux B2

PECES

ThizLinux Software PRC, limited US$800,000 - 100 Sales of Linux based
(Shenzhen) Company liability company 800,000 37T software and
Limited FE - BREEAR hardware products

BNEsER (4 ORI BR AR $8E Linux BURE 1+

Efm
BN RHASRE AR AR 69 20104 3R
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

15. FriGHE AT s (18)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
Name of company registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
A ERTEBEREE VN
IR PSS-Sk M E A FEERERD L TEXEHK
Direct Indirect
HiE [SE3
Beijing Thiz Junye PRC, limited US$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of
Software Co, Ltd liability company 1,000,000 37T training services on
Jb R BN e 2 X FE - BREEAF Linux based
BRATA software
R4 Linux B i
ZI3EFNBR
Dalian Thizlinux PRC, limited RMB1,000,000 - 90 Development of Linux
Technology Institute liability company AR 1,000,000 7T based software
Co, Limited R BREMTEAR products
A BRI FE Fe B g G Linux B2 &
b AR AR
g RNES FIfE e T PRC, limited US$150,000 - 100 Dormant
BRATA liability company 150,000 37T AT
PR BEREERA
Thizlinux Software PRC, limited US$150,000 - 100 Development of
(Kunshan) Company liability company 150,000 3% 7T Linux based

Limited
BB I fE 52 Hr x4
(B BRAF

B AREERF

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

s to the Financial Statements [Continu_e'
BAT5 3R R Mt (48)

31 March 2010

16. iESEFAZE AN

—E-TF=RA=1+—H

The Group
AEE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost:- AR
At 1 April 2008 RZZEENFNA—A 44,209
Exchange adjustments T 34, 8 (226)
At 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2010 R-BBEAF=ZA=+—-HR=Z2—ZF=ZA=+—H 43,983
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:-  Z&T# 8 & RE ¢
At 1 April 2008 RZZEEZNFMNA—A 29,451
Charge for the year AEETH 2,880
Impairment loss AR 10,822
Exchange adjustments IR (370)
At 31 March 2009 R-BEZhF=A=+—H 42,783
Charge for the year AEFEZH 400
At 31 March 2010 R-ZB-ZTF=A=+-—H 43,183
Carrying amount:- AREE
At 31 March 2010 R=-Z-ZF=A=+-—-H 800
At 31 March 2009 RZBEZhF=A=+—H 1,200

Deferred development costs represented costs included for development of the

Group’s Linux based software in prior years.

The directors reviewed the carrying amounts of the deferred development

costs at the end of each reporting period. As at 31 March 2010, the directors

concluded that the recoverable amount based on value in use is higher than their

carrying value. Value in use is estimated based on the expected sale proceeds of

Linux based products developed less related cost of sales at the discount rate of

12% (2009: 12%). Accordingly, no impairment loss was recognised for the year

ended 31 March 2010 (2009: HK$10,822,000).

BN REER AT

71

ZRRA

BIER B RAE N BEFERBEAREZ Lnux RIFESE

EFENEREHRRRECHERAZREE - K=
T-TF=A=+—8 EEELLEH REEHER
/BHzAERSESNEREE - £REEIRIEF
B 2 Linux 2 & 2 TB HA 88 & FT1S SR E0R 4 B 8 & B AR IR T
WEA2% (ZTTNF : 12%) 5t o Bt - WEREE
T TF=RA=TBUFEHRREEE(ZZTN
4 1 10,822,000/87T) ©

2010 F 5
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31 March 2010 —F—TF=A=1+—H

17. INVENTORIES

17. 78

Linux based software products package
Software training manuals and materials
Computer hardware and accessories

and household goods

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as

follows:

Linux BN E RESE
B I AR A S e bR
BIE M RE R R AR

RREXZFEEEZANAOT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEFEZREE
Provision for obsolete and slow B BT SRS
moving inventories
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. [EURERIE
Trade receivables FEMERTE
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREHE

Thiz Technology Group Limited

72
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The Group
REE
2010 2009
et B 13 —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T T
187
68
97
352
2010 2009
N “TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
6,012
495
6,507
The Group
REH
2010 2009
—z-%% —EFENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
53,581
(52,852)
729




e Financial Statements [Cont
ECETEAR

31 March 2010 —T—ZTF= E-f-*EI
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED]) 18. FEURERIA (£8)

(@ The average credit period to the Group’s customers is 30 — 60 days. As (@) AEBEHETEPZTHEERR0-60H - KRZZ—
at 31 March 2010, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables TFE=A=1+—H0 " BREXHEHHE Z$%E§€
net of allowance for doubtful debts, based on the transaction date was as UWERTE (BB REREHE) 2R DT T ¢
follows:

The Group

rEE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FAT
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 468
31 - 60 days 31Z60H 233
61 -90 days 61Z90H -
91 - 180 days 91E180H 4
Over 180 days 180 HIAE 24
729

() The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year, () FAREERB(REFERERERIS) 2&&Hnm

including both specific and collective loss components, are as follows: ™
The Group
AEHE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of year F4) 52,700
Impairment loss recognised ERRZREEE 152
Bad debt written off AR -
At end of year FR 52,852
At 31 March 2010, the Group’s trade receivables of HK$143,000 (2009: RZT-TF=ZA=+—0 AKHEZ 1430008
HK$52,852,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The T(ZZZTAF ¢ 52,852,000/8 7T ) 2 FE AR IAR &
individually impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial RIEEE AHIRME & 5l 2R E & UGR A SRR M
difficulties and management assessed that the collectability of receivables BRRzEFARM  AEEERRZFRUEFELZ
is remote. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of FIUREIMEAR S » B - {Ei 143,000 87 (ZF
HK$143,000 (2009: HK$52,852,000) was made. The Group does not hold F © 52,852,000 70) Z RERFFTE i © AR E AL M
any collateral over these balances. PR S ESE B T -
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 18. FEURERIE (£8)

(©) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor () WESRINEEREALRBEZ EREEZ KR
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: SR
The Group
EE

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TTNEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FTT

Neither past due nor impaired 3 e sa B SR E 471

Less than 1 month past due wmELN1EAR 230

1 to 3 months past due w1 = 31EA -

Over 3 months past due BEASME A A L 28

729

i 428 380 F AR O M B TR B A 0T N B R R A 8
ZEFER -

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

EEEMERRE, BURIREASEARIFEED
BeLRBURFAR - RIBBELR  BHEEM
B AREREETEHREREYRZELEHRT
WRRRIBHIRE - AR LS AR TR ER
1 o ANEREW A A FEARFT B TR -

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there have not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 19. RENIRTET

The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FiT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHETT 5,660
Time deposit TE BT 8,000
18,660
Less: Time deposit with original B PRI AR RE =18 A& 5 23
maturity of more than three ZEETFER
months when acquired (8,000)
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEEE 5,660

Thiz Technology Group Limited 74
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19.

20.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2010, included in the Group’s cash and bank balances were
amounts of approximately HK$987,000 (2009: HK$1,067,000) denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of reporting
period:-

19

20.

PAT R R MR ()

31 March 2010 —F—TF=A=1+—H

RERRTERE (18)

RZB—ZF=A=+—0 A5EZESRETER
F49987,000 % T (ZZZ N4 : 1,067,000/87T) AAR
BITAREDEE  WHERNPE - ARETATERAR
BREMERE - A RIBREINEEIRRT REE - &
ERMNEEERT  AEEBBEREETINEREK
ZHRITHMARBREMER -

MEfTERIA

RIFE PR BARBEZ BT -

The Group
REH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

0-30 days 0ZF30H
31 - 60 days 31Z60H
61 - 90 days 61Z90H
91 - 180 days 91E180H
181 — 360 days 181 £ 360 H
Over 360 days 360 B
ENE RIS EAR A R
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401
195
39

21

656

20104 3R




21.

ee.

—T-TF=A=+—H

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUALS

tes to the Financial Statements [Edﬁtl
B TE SRR MiaE (B

31 March 2010

21. Efh[EfTRIA - Bz & KIESHRIE

The Group
rEE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Other payable, deposits received and accruals EAEMZIE « BUWiEE RETFIA 14,230 28,008
Less: current portion B FREIRRE RBaE (5,702) (28,008)
Non-current portion —FEEH B EFIE 8,528 -

At 31 March 2010, loan payables of HK$7,626,000 (2009: HK$18,357,000)
included in the Group’s other payables, deposits received and accruals are
unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate per annum. On 31 March
2010, the borrower confirmed in writing to the Group that no demand for
settlement of the advances and accrued interest totalling HK$8,528,000 would
be made within 12 months from the end of reporting period. Interest charged
during the year amounted to HK$644,000 (2009: HK$1,100,000).

AMOUNT DUE TO DIRECTOR

RZTZ—TF=ZA=+—0 GATAREEEMEN
I~ BYUIR S K JERTRIE 2 7,626,000 T (Z T TN,
118,357,000 70) Z EN ERBEER  ILGFEEH
SEBFEFE - RZZ—TF=A=+—0 " BRA
NEEARANEEER  EamsHAet+=EA
NG ZERFERR K MERF 2483 8,528,000 47T © F
NFERS 2 7 25 644,000 BT (ZZE T SEF 1,100,000 74
7T e

22. [BYESMIA

The Group
AEE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FA&T
Amount due to director JEfTEE IR 8,710 8,710
Less: current portion B —FREIRFEZ B A E - (8,710)
Non-current portion —FEIH B ERIE 8,710 -

The amount due to Mr. Lin Chien Hsin of HK$8,710,000 (2009: HK$8,710,000)
is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate per annum. On 31 March
2010, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin confirmed in writing to the Group that no demand
for settlement of the amount of HK$8,710,000 and accrued interest totalling
HK$1,170,000 would be made within 12 months from the end of reporting
period. Interest charged during the year amounted to HK$435,000 (2009:
HK$449,000).

Thiz Technology Group Limited

76

JE {5 BR 2 5 58 4E 2 3RI88,710,0008 L ( Z T T N4 -
8,710,000/ 7T)  JyEEIR « REBHEBFFEE -
RZZE—ZF=ZA=+—H HEFEEUEEAXE
AEEER  ARAaRERRET _EANTEERE
EFKIE8,710,00078 7T & FEFT 487 5.1,170,0008 7T ARG
JEREATF B A435,0008 7T ( ZZET A4 : 449,000/87T) ©
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23.

24,

AMOUNT DUE TO THE SPOUSE OF A DIRECTOR

The amount due is unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate calculated on
a monthly basis and repayable on demand. Interest charged during the year
amounted to HK$99,000 (2009: HK$112,000).

TAX PAYABLE

As disclosed in the 2006/07 annual report and the Company’s announcement
on 29 September 2005, there was a judgement against TLL, a subsidiary of
the Company, in a legal action instituted in the District Court of Hong Kong by
the Commissioner of Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) against TLL in relation
to the Commissioner’s claim for the sum of HK$6,480,000, being profits tax
payable by TLL for the years of assessment 2001/02 and 2002/03.

The aggregate amount of the tax liabilities due to the IRD and the profits tax
surcharges and interest was approximately HK$7,127,000. Full provision for the
profits tax in dispute and related interest and surcharges has been made in the
financial statements in the prior years.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the IRD issued Notice of Revised
Assessment and Refund of Tax for the years of assessment 2001/02 and
2002/03 and the final assessed profits taxes of 2001/02 and 2002/03 should be
revised to HK$494,000 and HK$2,719,000, respectively. Accordingly, the over-
provision of prior years’ tax payable of HK$3,357,000 was credited to profit or
loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the IRD issued additional demand note

of HK$1,095,000 for legal costs and interest levied on revised tax assessment.
Accordingly, the legal costs and interest was debited to profit or loss.

BB REER AT
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23.

24.

PAT R R MR ()

31March2010 —ZE—ZF=A=+—H

ETEEEmMRIA

JEAT 2 FRIB TR IR - IR B R ARG B (IR A B E AT
B) REREKEER - NFEENFER9,0008 (=
TTHAF  112,00087T) °

AR I8

M-FTN/ FLEERERADAR - FTAENA
—HABTRZ AR - BREADZ —BHBA
AIENE R BRI R ( EEHBR) REREEE
BUEBRI AT - $IEDB RGIE 1 A#6,480,00078
T ANBEAR-2F—E-R-FF- B}
BB 2 FIBB AR 2 % -

EREBENG R HEAERMSHM INE T B RE
#)/37,127,0008 7T © ek 2 FIISHH K AR B S AF 0 2
ERAEFE M RERNEIELEE -

REZEZZZAF=-A=+—BLFE  BEHEHH’
—ET TR TT - TR EERREER]
BRHIERERBN — T2 TR -_FTT- T
= FRBFE 2 BILFIE TS D BIAIERT] A 494,000 7
TCR 2,719,000 7T © Bt - AFEE 7 BEATIE 2 858
445 3,357,0008 LB 5T ABE °

REE-T-TE=A=+—AILEE EEHERE
11,005,000 8 7E 2 EIMESUBAE - (EAERRARS
IS (ESTRB BT FIS. - B SARRARFIBE
s AdE -

2010 F 5
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31 March2010 =—ZE—ZF=HA=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. ARIK
Number of shares HK$’000
ROHE FHERT
Authorised:— SETE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 RZZEZN\FHA—H
each at 1 April 2008 BREEO1 BT Eilk 3,300,000,000 330,000
Increase in authorised capital (note (a)) SETERRAIE N (BT (@) 1,000,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at R-ZETNFZAZ+—HR-_ZT—TF
31 March 2009 and 31 March 2010 =A=t+—HBEKREEC1 BT HEK 4,300,000,000 430,000
Issued and fully paid:— BETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZZETZN\F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2008 BREECI BT BB 1,045,614,375 104,561
Conversion of convertible IR ARARE ST R (T3 (o)
preference shares (note (b)) 40,000,000 4,000
Subscription of shares (note (c)) R (BT (c)) 217,122,875 21,713
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZEThF=A=+—H
at 31 March 2009 BREEO1 BT EiBk 1,302,737,250 130,274
Subscription of shares (note (d)) REERG (FIEE () 260,000,000 26,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R-B-ZFFE=A=+—H
at 31 March 2010 EREEIBTZEER 1,562,737,250 156,274

Notes: M s

(@  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 1 September (8 WBER-ZZZNFANA-—BESSTH BB BELE
2008, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased to HK$430,000,000 RER ARRAZAEAERABHLEGREEC1E T
by the creation of 1,000,000,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. 1,000,000,000 A% ¥ i A% 1% % 430,000,000 /& T ©

(b)  On 14 April 2008, a total of 40,000,000 convertible preference shares were converted () RZZTZTNFHEUA+HHE - &3£40,000,000 f A #2585 AR
into 40,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the conversion price of HK$0.1 RIRAIHAARE e IR 2 AR ABRON BT KIRER RS
each in accordance with the conversion rights of the convertible preference shares. 40,000,000 B EF AR EEO.1 BT Ei@AK

()  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 29 October (€ MWER-ZTZN\ETA-TNEEEFEH BB —BEA
2008, the Company issued 217,122,875 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each by way of REBER - ARBULHBES NIRBITEEROA B TET
an open offer at an issue price of HK$0.1 per share. The net proceeds amounted to 217,122,875 R BREEOCA B L2 B - FTERIBFER
HK$21,501,000. The gross proceeds of HK$21,713,000 and share issue expenses 21,501,000/ 7T © {5 IB42%821,713,0008 T R IR 15 1T
of HK$212,000 were credited to share capital and debited to share premium F32 212,000 & 75 BIFF AR A RAERAR 1R & -
respectively.

(d)  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 17 June 0 BER-ZEZAFE At+LEZEEEH BB —BLAE
2009, the Company issued 260,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each by way of SRBE ARFIUABEBRE S RIRBITEESR01 B ITET
an open offer at an issue price of HK$0.1 per share. The net proceeds amounted to 260,000,000 A& G AR EIE 0.1 7 7T 2 EiBA% - FTS BS54
HK$25,695,000. The gross proceeds of HK$26,000,000 and share issue expenses 25,695,000 7T © P15 518 4858 26,000,000 7T [ AR 17 31T
of HK$305,000 were credited to share capital and debited to share premium 5937 305,000 i 7T BIEH A IR AN R AE AR 5 B o
respectively.
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26. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 26. OJHRRR 1B AR
The Group and the Company NEBRARAT
Number of shares HK$’000
BRHHE FHERT
Authorised: VETE ¢
Non-voting convertible preference shares RZZEZNFMNA—A
of HK$0.1 each (the “CPS”) at TN FEZA=+—HRK
1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 —E-TF=—A=+—H
and 31 March 2010 GREEC.1BITZ
EIRER IR E LR
(MA@ SRR ) 900,000,000 90,000
The movements of the CPS are set out as follows: AR E SRR EEHEYINT
Number Equity Liability
of shares component component Total
RHEE fEmI D E8E&8D “@Et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FERT
At 1 April 2008 RZTENFMA—AH 40,000,000 789 5,456 6,245
Effective interest expenses (note 6)  EFEFI B 5 (FizE6) - - 63 63
Interest payable transferred EREEAREMNRIEY
to other payables JERF B - - (317) (317)
Converted to ordinary shares HpaLEk
(note 25 (b)) (PMF3E 25(0)) (40,000,000) (789) (5,202) (5,991)
At 31 March 2009 RZBZEAF=ZA=1+—H
and 31 March 2010 kR=Z-ZF=ZH=+—H - - - -
During the year ended 31 March 2009, the effective interest rate was 7.75% for REBEEZTENF=ZA=1T—HLEFER ' &ZPH AL

27.

the tranch of the CPS.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 5 August 2004, the share option
scheme adopted on 6 July 2001 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated with
immediate effect provided that options which have been granted and remain
outstanding shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of

issue and the provisions of Chapter 23

resolution passed on the same date.

ARBIE 2 BIRFIE R 7.75% °

27. BARiESH 8!

BE_ZTOFE\ALABB TRRER K%
—FLANAMRN BB ([E518 ) 2R
b EB R B R ARTTE 2 BRI BT IRTUA R
BIZEIR ETTARRANF 238 2 RERHEER T1T6E - AAF

X

S

7

of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company EARER BBl 2 R E NIRRT 8 ([ 518 ]) -
has adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) pursuant to a

ENE R SR BB R AR 79 2010 45
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

27. BBRRiEst 8l (1)

The purpose of this New Scheme is to motivate the eligible participants for their
contributions to the Company and help the Company in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees and to provide them with a
direct economic interest in attaining the long term business objectives of the
Company. Eligible participants of the New Scheme include any employee,
proposed employee (including any executive and non-executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries), adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, customer
and supplier of any member of the Group.

The New Scheme shall remain in force for ten years from 5 August 2004
during which the directors may make offer to grant share options to eligible
participants.

The maximum number of shares available for issue under options which may
be granted under the New Scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue. The maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of the above
limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval with such participant and his
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

If options are granted to a connected person (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) or his associates, the granting of such options will be subject to all
independent non-executive directors’ (excluding independent non-executive
director who is a grantee) approval; where options are proposed to be granted
to a connected person who is also a substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates which will result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted or to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person under the New Scheme in the past 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant (1) exceeding 0.1% of the
total issued shares for the time being; and (2) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, the granting of such options will be subject to approval of
the independent shareholders of the Company taken on a poll. All connected
persons will abstain from voting (except that any connected person may vote
against the resolution).

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The option will be offered for acceptance for a period
of 5 days from the date on which the option is granted. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors and shall not be more
than ten years from the date of grant and the directors may provide restrictions
on the exercise of the option during the period an option may be exercised.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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s to the Financial Statements [Continué

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the New Scheme shall be such price as the board of directors at their
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant, which must be a trading day; (i)
the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.

No option was granted under the New Scheme. The options granted under the
Old Scheme were to a director. Outstanding share options granted under the
Old Scheme as at 31 March 2009 and 2010 was 234,995 which continue to be
exercisable.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of reporting
period:

PAT R R MR ()

31March2010 —Z—ZF=A=+—H

27. BB Est 8l (18)

AR TREZEMFEREREZSRREETA
EESRHMBRE  EZERTBERNAT=FZ&
BE  (VNEERH(BERRSH) BN RZAARE
FERUCTRE © (i) B2 B BRI 8 5 B AR (D FER A
B R P P A& ¢ Sk (il Bt EfE -

WEAR B E SR L AR EARE - BIBERTE - BEm—
FEERHERE - R-_ZETNFR-_ZT—TF=-A
=8 BEEFEBREMRTELEE] TITEZ
BENRAE 5 234,99517 °

AR HATR 180 R e 70 B 18 R T 2 BB AR 2 MK

2010 2009
—E-2F ZTENF
Exercise Exercise
price Number price Number
Date of grant Exercise period per share of options per share of options
RHAH THEHE BRITREE BRERE BRITEE RS E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
21 November 2001 30 June 2002 to 29 June 2012
e —EEHFRA=THZE
= —E-ZFRAZ+ANAE 2.2 234,995 2.2 234,995
There was no movement in share option during the year. E RIS E) o

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meeting.

BN REER AT
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—ET-ZTHF=-A=+—8H

28. RESERVES

The Group

@

Capital redemption reserve

The reserve represents the amount equivalent to the nominal value of the
Company’s shares cancelled arising from repurchased shares in prior
years.

Convertible preference shares equity reserve

The reserve represents the value of the unexercised equity component of
convertible preference shares issued by the Company.

Special reserve

The reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of
the shares of the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM.

Translation reserve
The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the

translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 3(0).

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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31 March2010 =ZE—ZTF=A=+—H

28. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28. f s (48)
The Group (Continued) INEEE (£8)
(e) Reserves of the Company e ARElZiEE
Convertible
preference
Capital shares equity
Share redemption reserve Accumulated
premium reserve TRRELR losses Total
BRARE EREERHE ERGE Bt @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL Fhr THEL T ThEr
(Note 28(a)) (Note 28(b))

(frit2se) (Hi28p)

Balance at 1 Apri 2008 R-ZZ\FNA—-A&H 26,318 84 789 (92,665) (64,974)
Conversion of convertiole SRTBRRELR

preference shares 1,991 - (789) - 1,202
Share issue and related expenses RELBR BTRE

in subscription of ordinary shares AR

1) - . - p12)

Total comprehensive income TEERENRER

for the year - - - (49,143 (49,143)
Balance at 31 March 2009 RZZTNEF=A=1+—H

and at 1 April 2009 RZEENFNA-BER 28,597 84 - (141,808) (113,127)
Share issue and related expenses RELBR

in subscription of ordinary shares BIRH KBRS (305) - - - (305)
Total comprehensive income TFERENEES

for the year - - - (35,762) (35,762)
Balance at 31 March 2010 RIZ-ZE=A=t-H&H 28,292 84 - (177,570) (149,194)
The Company had no distributable reserves at 31 March 2010. Under the RZZE—ZTF=A=+—0 ' ARETEATHI K
Companies Law (Cap. 22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of i - REBREHBERFNE(—NAR—FEI3TEN
the Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable to the shareholders F22F - KIFRERIERT) - RIEBHEEZED KRS R
of the Company, provided that immediately following the date on which the Bi% ARRIRENEERSEBTIHIER &
dividends is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position AR R ETED IR FARRIRE

to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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29. DISPOSAL AND DEREGISTRATION OF 29. BEREGHEMME LD
SUBSIDIARIES

RZZEZNFLR  KNRFGEE 0% a2 fMEHTE A
B 78 i AR BN B2 B BT IR B SRR BB FE T » it
ZARBEBUHGEM A M sE R RUAREZTH

In July 2009, X 3 7 i A 22 B B {5 B 5% il 35 I 2 %, an indirect owned
subsidiary of the Company with 90% interest, was deregistered. As it was
dormant up to the date of deregistration, there is no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

In September 2009, the Group disposed its entire interest in a subsidiary, Fa% RZZZENFNA  AEBHEER —HHNBARAER

HE Linux HEH L.

The net assets of the subsidiary disposed of at the date of disposal were as

follows:

B Linux 205 Hb 2 2 Bk -

FIHEMBARREERHZEEFENT

2010 2009
%5 —TEnf

HK$ HK$

Property, plant and equipment
Prepayment and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Accruals and other payables

Tax payable

Net identifiable assets and liabilities

Total consideration

Release of translation reserve

Gain on disposal

Satisfied by:

Cash
Deferred consideration

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances disposed of

TE SRR e B R ROR
ReMRSSHERR

JE & FRIR e EoA A OB
e BIA

AHREERBEFE

BR(E

BERERR

HEZ WS

ATEIT AT

Re
RIERAE

HEELZRERAFR
ReRE
EHEZR S RIRT TR

Deferred consideration of disposal of a subsidiary will be fully repaid by five equal
monthly instalments in January 2011 and was included in the other receivables

as at 31 March 2010.

The subsidiary deregistered during the year ended 31 March 2010 did not
have any contribution to the Group’s turnover and contributed a net loss of

HK$34,000 to the Group’s operating results.

Thiz Technology Group Limited 84

R-ZZE-—ZF=ZA=+—H0 LEMNBARZELRE
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RBE-Z-ZF=A=+-HUEFEIUEZMZMHE
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29.

30.

31.

s to the Financial Statements (Continue

DISPOSAL AND DEREGISTRATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2010 did not
have any contribution to the Group’s turnover and contributed a net loss of
HK$421,000 to the Group’s operating results.

OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENT

As at 31 March 2010, the Group and the Company had outstanding
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of buildings,
which fall due as follows:—

29

30.

PAT R R MR ()

31March2010 —Z—ZF=A=+—H

BEREUEEMME LS (&)

RBE_Z-ZF-A=t+-RALFEHEZNELRA
HAKE EXPEER YAREEZEEXAETR
JE 18 F 5 421,000 87T °

REHERH

RIZ-—ZEF=A=+—H0 AEERARAREFTZ
TR ERERRARETRE - BIHIAQT

The Group The Company
AEE ARFE

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-EF —ZTNF —E-ZF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FET FHERT FAT

Within one year —FR 724 799 - -
In the second to fifth F_EFRF

years Inclusive (BREEEMF) - 72 - -

724 871 - -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for the office
premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to
two years with fixed monthly rentals.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

References are made to an announcement on 13 March 2006 in relation to a
claim of service commission of HK$3,329,000 (RMB3,000,000), together with
the interest of HK$252,000 (RMB227,000) by an ex-employee of Ying Jia, a
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, against the Company. The ex-employee
has obtained a judgement in his favour in the court of the PRC (the “Ruling”).

The Company’s legal advisers confirmed that, under the laws of Hong Kong and
the Cayman lIslands, there is no statutory mechanism for judgement made by
the Courts in Mainland China to be enforceable either in Hong Kong or Cayman
Islands. The directors of the Company believe that the enforceability of the
Ruling is doubtful and the Group is not liable to the claim. No provision has been
made in these financial statements in respect of any contingent liabilities arising
from this claim.

BN REER AT
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32. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions and balances are as follows:—
(a) Balances with related parties

Details are disclosed in notes 22 and 23 to the financial statements.
(b) Interest charged by related parties

Details are disclosed in notes 22 and 23 to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The remuneration of other key management during the year was as

32.

BAENBGRBEALRS

BEREMEALRGRERNAT -
(a) BRIBALEEH

BREA L2 BRI BRI 22 & 23 4R o
(b) BRIEATHERZHR

BRAEALWEZ F BRI R MR 22 R 23 K

Zo
() EZREBEASHE

B 2 FIERNM B WMKMITES

PHRAFE  EtI2ERE 2w

follows:—
Year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—HLFE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
Short term benefits rEEEN 794 801
Post-employment benefits RNER 27 30
821 831

The directors are of the opinion that balances with related parties and
related interest charged by related parties which also constitute connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules were carried out in the normal
course of business of the Group and conducted on terms no more
favourable than normal commercial terms.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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33.

34.

35.

s to the Financial Statements (Continue

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31 March 2009, a total of 40,000,000 convertible preference
shares were converted into ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.1 each at
the rate of 1 convertible preference share for 1 ordinary share of the Company

and 40,000,000 ordinary shares were issued on 14 April 2008.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

M

(i)

(i)

()

to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern;

to provide an adequate return to shareholders;

to support the Group’s sustainable growth;

to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers and acquisitions.

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to its overall financing

structure. As set forth in note 3(a), the Group has adopted several measures

including issue of shares with a view to ensure the Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern The Group manages the capital structure and makes

adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk

characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital

structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,

return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the normal

course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and

currency risk.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are

performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These

evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables are due
within 30-60 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 2 months past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

BN REER AT

33.

34.

35.

PAT R R MR ()
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FRHRERS

HE-ZTZhHF=A=1+—HILFE ' & 40,000,000
& AT R AR 4B e AR IR E AR 0.1 B TT LA — IR AT IR AR 18 S A 55—
BB R A BAATEBEER ST\ EMA
P4 B 277 40,000,000 % L 3E@BA% ©

&R EIR
REEERERBHOMAT -

() FERAEBAENASBEE LTS
(i) REREHSIEOR

(i) SR AREEFEER,

(v) FRELEADETATRE A OF RS o
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FBREBAREAREEZRBRBEFELRERE - B
TREIABREEASHE  ARETHBRETRRZ
BEEE  RERBERAS  BIHRIHEEELR
EafE -

REENZIEBEINZ BARERS -

M RIREIR

AEESHMTARARXGRRETELZTERRAE
ERfR - mBESRER - MEREBREEERR

(a) EERMR

AEEZEEER E B i EAARIE & A KR
EE-EREFAGERR  UNEEFEEEY
ZIEERR -

PEMNIRIA R A E R FIRME - 1A ERiEBE
TEESEZEPBETEMEES - LEFE
TEHHEPBE DN 28RS SRR E R
B UEREFPHBHIAEMREPEEXTHNE
BRENER - BUARARERE HHEI0-60 8 A
- MEBABRABBEMEA - —REBERK
RS EERNALBEMEER - £—RIER
T AEETEERLEFRMERR
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent.

At 31 March 2010, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as 66.6%
and 87.1% (2009: 50.8% and 96% respectively), of the trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors
respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the consolidated statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses
and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from related parties to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of
reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative financial
liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the end of
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay.

Thiz Technology Group Limited

35. M EIREIR (1&)

(a)

(b)

EERR (1)

AREZFERAREIEZEEFEANFETE - &
FReETErARzZERTEZEEERR B2
ERIE -

RZZE—ZF=ZA=+—0 ARETEEHFE
66.6% %87.1% (=TT NF : 50.8% K% 96%) 2 FEUL
BRIERAEE Y HREBARBKEBHAFE

B EHEFREERR -

ETFAEAERSEZERRT  RaEERRS
RAaPBRRRAEREREELNBREFRER
EZEHE - AEBRYERH#AREESRERR
B AR IELR

mEnE R
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(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

31 March 2010

36. M EIREIR (18)

(b) FENEERMR (F&)

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted

amount cash flow

EHEES: T
IREE HEREHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

The Group

2010

Trade payables

Other payables

Amount due to director

Amount due to the spouse of a director

2009

Trade payables

Other payables

Amount due to director

Amount due to the spouse of a director

The Company

2010

Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

2009
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

EE
—E-EF
FERTERIE

HoAth AR IE
FENEERE
FENERRBRE

ZTTNEF
FEfHERIE
Hoth FE A FRE
ENEERE
ENERRBTE

N
—E-BF
Hoth A~ R E
FETRT R RIFRE

ZTTNF
H b FE R RIE
FERTH B2 Rk TR

BRI SR E AR AR

PAT R R M =T (.--E)

—Z—ZEHF=-A=+—H

Within 1
year or on
demand
R—FR
FRER
HK$’000
TET

Over 1

year
—FHE
HK$'000

FET

656 656 656 -
24,542 25,460 25,460 -
8,710 9,145 9,145 -
2,058 2,160 2,160 -
35,966 37,421 37,421 -

2,370 2,370 2,370 -
19 19 - 19
2,389 2,389 2,370 19
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from short-term borrowings
with variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out below.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group at the end
of reporting period.

tes to the Financial Statements (Conti
M5 R M s (8

31 March 2010

35. M EIREIR (1&)

(o) TI=RRERR

AEEZFERBREZRRERFIHFRTE 2R
HEX - RFEHF R B 2ERANEEAF LIRS
HFIRER - BIRESERANER 2 FEMRR - F
BT o

AT S AR BN & R 2 R RIS -

The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNEF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
YRS ERRAE
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
FHxT FHT
Variable rate borrowings FERRREE
Amount due to a director B EERIE 5% 8,710 5% 8,710
Amount due to the spouse of a director N EEREHE 5% 1,866 5% 2,058
Other payables E b R FRIE 5% 7,626 5% 18,357
Total variable rate borrowings FEAREERRE 18,202 29,125
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group’s borrowings are AKBEERZ TR LEFMERBRRMT21 - 22
disclosed in notes 21, 22 and 23 to the financial statements. Ko 23 MIEE ©
At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 RZT—TF=ZRA=+—H EFEMFET
basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would BEERT - eI R— M 5, T 100 &
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after taxation and accumulated losses 2B BeERASERVEEERRTEEL
by approximately HK$182,000 (2009: HK$291,000). o, 49182,000 5 7T (Z EE AL + 291,000
JL) e
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the N EOBRESTEBREFN RS N RS AR
change in interest rates had occurred at the end of reporting period and AMEE  WEERARBERZAMELYRETER
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both derivative IOTESRT A FEER o s T#H1001EES
and non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100 HEREHEE T —EFEREHRA/MZFE
basis points increase or decrease represents management’s assessment REEIREE) 2 T - AEEGN ST NFRER
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until the BTN o
end of next reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2009.
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35.

36.

s to the Financial Statements (Continue

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk

Currency risk to the Group is minimal as most of the Group’s transactions
are carried out in the respective functional currencies of the Group entities.
(e) Fair values estimation

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 March 2010 and 2009.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial position and results of operations are sensitive to
accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions
and estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
the Group believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources.
On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may
differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of significant accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the consolidated financial statements.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

Going concern basis

Management makes an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern when preparing the financial statements. The Group is dependent upon
the successful outcome of the measures as set forth in note 3(a) in order to meet
the Group’s future working capital and financing requirements.

In assessing whether the going concern assumption is appropriate,
management takes into account all available information about the future, which
is at least, but is not limited to twelve months from the approval date of the
financial statements.

If the Group were unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments relating to

the recoverability and classification of recorded asset and liabilities amounts may
need to be incorporated in the financial statements.
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36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Impairment losses for trade receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade receivables resulting from the
inability of the customers to make the required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, customer credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual write-offs might be higher than expected
and could significantly affect the results of future periods.

Impairment losses of deferred development costs

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its deferred development costs to
determine whether they are impaired. The recoverable amount of the deferred
development costs is determined based on the CGU of the distribution of the
Group’s Linux based software to which the development costs belonged on
the value in use basis. The calculations are based on the most recent financial
projections of the aforesaid operations approved by management. The following
key assumptions have been made for the purpose of analysis:

1. No change in gross margin (2009: no change)
2. Pre tax discount rate of 12% per year (2009: 12%)

3. Average negative growth rate of 5% (2009: average negative growth rate of
5%)

The Group determined the gross margin based mainly on past performance of
the CGU. The discount rate is determined based on the risk free interest rate
adjusted by the specific risk associated with the CGU. Should the directors’
estimation of inputs such as gross margin, pre tax discount rate and average
growth rate be revised, the carrying amount of the deferred development costs
will be adjusted accordingly.
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39.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 37. TRHEEREMEaENBINE
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as AEBR-_Z-—ZEFR-ZZTNF=ZRA=+—H#®ER
recognised at 31 March 2010 and 2009 may be categorised as follows:— SREERSREBEZEMESBENT ¢
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B ERE
(including cash and bank balances) (PIER© RIRITHER) 15,840 15,177
Financial liabilities SHas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost HHEEK AT EZ 2RaE 24,432 35,966
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. IREHAEEIR
The Company entered into share subscription agreements on 7 June 2010 ARNBRZE—ZFNAL BTG RE R (%
as disclosed in note 3(a)(i) to the financial statements and the Company’s MEMESQN) RARRBHAETE—ZTFAEAZA
announcement on 7 June 2010. MFTIRE) -
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39. #rHERISEIRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of BEeRN _T-TFENA-TRBHELERETEEHSE
directors on 25 June 2010. iRk o
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The following is a summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group, prepared for the last five years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

RESULTS
2010
—E-2F
HK$°000
FHExT
Turnover =
Loss from operations L e
Finance costs RhE AR
Loss before taxation Bt AN E1E
Taxation Tiia
Loss for the year rEEERE
Attributable to:- AT AL -
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIEZS DN
Minority interests LER R

Thiz Technology Group Limited

NTRASEABEREFEMRR I GAEEENREERE
BZHME - DB ARE 2 KBRS ]RE - NEEW
R IT R 2 MRS
ES o
Year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—HLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006
—ETNF —ETNF —ETLF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAT FAT
7,555 6,264 14,141 8,368
(25,183) (89,223) (42,309) (29,002
(1,724) (3,738) (6,159) (2,845)
(26,907) (42,961) (48,468) (31,847)
3,357 - - -
(23,550) (42,961) (48,468) (81,847)
(23,550) (42,848) (48,468) (81,700)
- (113) - (147)
(23,550) (42,961) (48,468) (31,847)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Current assets

Deduct:
Current liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Minority interests

Net liabilities

FRBEE

mBARE

e
nBEE

RBEE/(afE)FE

BAERRBAE

FRBAIE

sENGE
At 31 March
R=B=+—8”
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-ZF T NEF T N\F T ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET FAT FAT FAT
1,836 16,675 36,764 25,451
15,864 14,933 8,645 43,234
39,651 52,950 53,832 29,489
(23,787) (38,017) (45,187) 13,745
(21,951) (21,342) (8,423) 39,196
- 4,110) (46,760) (47,612)
- - (113) -
(21,951) (25,452) (55,296) 8,416)

BRI SR E AR AR
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Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B, Hunghom C
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Tel BiE : (852) 27352725
Fax B5H : (852) 21110702
Website #84F :  www.thizgroup.com
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